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m Translation from Arabic

Hazem Hassan

Public Accountants & Consultants

B (105) — Avenue (2) — Smart Village Telephone : (202) 35 37 5000 — 35 37 5005

Km 28 Cairo — Alex Desert Road E-mail : Egypt@kpmg.com.eg

Giza — Cairo — Egypt Fax : (202) 35 37 3537

Postal Code : 12577 P.O.Box :(5) Smart Village
AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Ezz Steel Company

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ezz Steel Company
"An Egyptian Joint Stock Company"”, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as of December 31, 2020 and the consolidated statements of income,
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the financial year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of Company’s management.
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the Egyptian Accounting Standards and in the light
of the prevailing Egyptian laws, management responsibility includes, designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; management responsibility also includes selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Egyptian Standards on
Auditing and in the light of the prevailing Egyptian laws. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
company's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.
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Hazem Hassan Translation from Arabic

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our andit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Ezz Steel Company as of
December 31, 2020 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with the Egyptian Accounting
Standards and the Egyptian laws and regulations relating to the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of matters

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the following:

1- As explained in note no. (1-3) of the notes to the consolidated financial statements, the

company and some of its subsidiaries have incurred retained losses amounted to L.E 15.527
Billion as of December 31, 2020 stated in consolidated statement of financial position, also
liabilities exceed assets (Deficit in Shareholder’s Equity) with an amount of L.E 8.96
Billion at that date, as Al Ezz Flat Steel company (EFS)-subsidiary company- has incurred
accumulated retained losses till December 31, 2020 with an amount of LE 12.092 Billion,
which deferred tax asset was recognized for it at that date with an amount of LE 910
Million, Also Al Ezz Rolling Mills company (ERM) -subsidiary company- has incurred
accumulated retained losses till December 31, 2020 amounted to LE 4.773 Billion, which
deferred tax asset was recognized for it at that date with an amount of LE 525 Million, the
total amount of these deferred tax assets is amounted to LE 1.436 Billion stated in deferred
tax assets in the consolidated statement of financial position at that date, the management
of these subsidiaries have prepared a budget for the years from 2021 to 2026 in which it
adopts the achievement of profit and improves the results of operations during these years,
in addition to a plan of obtaining the support and financing required for operations from
Al-Ezz El Dekheila For Steel — Alexandria (subsidiary company), which will reflect
positively on the operational and financial indicators in the subsequent years, and to have
the tax benefits of the tax carried forward losses. which depends on the realization of the
future assumptions which have been used in the preparation of the budget mentioned
above.

As explained in note no. (39) of the notes to the consolidated financial statements, During
the first quarter of year 2020 most of the world countries, including Egypt, were exposed to
the novel coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic which its effect still exists to date, and caused
disturbances in the majority of commercial and economic activities in general. So, it is
possible to have a material impact on the elements of assets, liabilities and its recoverable
value thereof, and the results of operations in the group’s consolidated financial statements
for the current year and subsequent periods, in addition to the potential impact on the
provision of raw materials, supplies necessary for production and operation, the demand on
the group’s products, and the available liquidity. According to the mentioned above note,
the group’s management is currently managing the risk of this impact on its current
consolidated financial statements and confirms that the values of assets and liabilities stated

-2
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Hazem Hassan Translation from Arabic

in the consolidated financial statements have been determined based on the best estimate of
the most recent data available to them. However, due to instability and uncertainty as a
result of current events, the magnitude of the impact of that event depends mainly on the
expected time frame, in which this event and its consequences, is expected to be ended,
which is difficult to be determined at the meantime.

As explained in note no. (35-3-1) of the notes to the consolidated financial statements, the
tax claims due from Al Ezz El Dekheila for Steel — Alexandria Company (subsidiary
company) — amounted to LE 219 Million according to the forms received from the Tax
Authority on February 17, 2011 in addition to delay penalties concerning the tax imposed
on the flat steel project which has previously enjoyed a tax exemption for the years 2000 —
2004.

The subsidiary’s management opinion is that the tax inspection was previously made for
the company pertaining to these years, and an agreement was reached in the Internal
Committee, while the disputed point pertaining to the cancellation of the development duty
on the exempted movable tax base was referred to the Appeal Committee which issued a
resolution on June 12, 2010 to the effect of cancelling the development duty imposed on
the exempted movable tax base, while the other tax bases shall remain exempted for the
disputed years. The due tax was paid in full as per the resolution of the Internal Committee;
accordingly, the dispute amicably came to an end and became final and decisive.

The subsidiary’s management and its legal advisor are of the opinion that the company’s
tax position is stable as the resolution of the Appeal Committee supported the company and
the company’s position became indisputable from the legal point of view. Subsequently,
the Tax Authority cannot dispute with the company about these years once again. The
company filed a lawsuit of discharge from any indebtedness before the court under no. 405
of the year 2011.

Al Ezz El Dekheila for Steel - Alexandria (EZDK) Company reached an agreement with
the Tax Authority to cancel the administrative attachment imposed on the company as a
result of the above-mentioned dispute. The paid amounts are LE 254 Million, including
delay interest amounted to LE 35 Million.

The subsidiary company is of the opinion that this procedure shall not change the legal and
tax position of the company as it reserves its right to reimburse what has been paid
immediately upon the issuance of a court ruling pertaining to lawsuit No. 405 of 2011.
Currently, it is difficult in the meantime to determine the final outcome that may arise from
such lawsuit until a final ruling is issued by the legal bodies in this regard.

As explained in note no. (38-2) of the notes to the consolidated financial statements, there
is a dispute raised between Al Ezz El Dekheila for Steel — Alexandria company (subsidiary
company) and the Sales Tax Authority regarding the amount of the sales tax in return for
usufruct of the equipment of mining ores dock related to the handling of ores in El -
Dekheila Port, amounting to LE 127.5 Million till June 28, 2012. On October 3, 2012, the
company paid the principal tax amounting to LE 104 Million along with its right to
maintain a reservation on the settlement until the Sales Tax Authority ceases all the actions
taken against Alexandria Port Authority which in its turn shall cease all the actions taken
against the subsidiary including the lift of attachment on the subsidiary’s balances at the
various banks.

-3
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However, the subsidiary’s management paid an amount of LE 127.5 Million which
represents the additional tax claimed, along with its right to maintain a reservation on the
settlement. Accordingly, Alexandria Port Authority notified the banks to lift the
administrative attachment imposed on the company’s balances at the said banks in favor of
the Port Authority.

Based on the opinion of its tax advisor, the subsidiary company’s management is of the
opinion that Alexandria Port Authority is not entitled to claim the company to pay sales tax
in return for usufruct of the equipment of mining ores dock related to the handling of ores
in El - Dekheila Port, the occupation of the yards allocated for this purpose and carrying
out the works of operation and maintenance necessary for such equipment due to the fact
that they are not subjected to sales tax. Furthermore, the payment of such amount or
amounts by the company to Alexandria Port Authority, either at the present time or in the
future, as a tax in return for the same service, does not mean its approval of subjecting the
service to taxation along with the continuity of legal proceedings taken by the company to
confirm the fact that such service is not subjected to sales tax.

M

KPMG Hazem Hassan
Public Accountants & Consultants

Cairo, April 1, 2021

KPMG Hazem Hassan
Public Accountants and Consultants




I A A A A A A A A A

Ezz Steel Company
(An Egyptian Joint Stock Company)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as of:

Non-Current Assets
Fixed assets (Net)

Projects under construction
Long term investments
Deferred tax assets

Long term lending to others
Other assets

Goodwill

Total non-current assets

Current Assets

Inventory

Trade and notes receivable
Debtors and other debit balances
Suppliers - advance payments
Investments in treasury bills
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets
Total Assets

Shareholders' Equity

Issued and paid - up capital

Reserves

Modification surplus of fixed assets

Retained losses

Treasury stocks

Foreign entites translation reserve

Deficit in holding company shareholders' equity

Non-controlling interest share in the capital increase of a subsidiary

Non-controlling interest
Deficit in shareholders' equity

Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Long-term loans

Long-term liabilities

Finance lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Current Liabilities

Banks - overdraft

Credit facilities and loan installments due within one year
Finance lease liabilities due within one year
Trade and notes payable

Customers - advance payments

Creditors and other credit balances

Income tax liabilities

Liability of the supplementary pension scheme
Provisions

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total shareholder's equity and liabilities

Note
No.

(11-1)
(12)
(13)

@1-1)
(14)
(15)

(41-9)

(16)
()
(18)

(41-8)
(20)

21-2)
(22)
(11-3)

(23-1)
(41-1)

(1-3)

28

(30)

(29)
@31-1)

20)
28
29
@4

@5

(26)
@7

Translation from Arabic

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
. Restated

LE (000) LE (000)
23291 803 24 473 462
212 660 334971
4721 4209
2120 703 1898 137
45 380 51024
35858 19 828
315214 315214
26 026 339 27 096 845
6 676 756 7 859 098
2875782 1859937
4404 704 3489721
331373 579 192
249 732 97 053
2223086 1850553
16 761 433 15 735 554
42 787 772 42 832 399
2716 325 2716 325
182 090 182 090
1446 615 1334 264
(15527 223) (13914 083)
( 71921) ( 71921)
a 2778 780
(11254 114) (6974 545)
- 1109 514
2291033 1629 194
(8963 081) (4235837)
11 634 621 11214 198
3717 624 1214993
365994 362 779
3661950 3774 609
19 380 189 16 566 579
155949 180 005
22 812438 20 112 263
64 566 43 880
5181 826 6196 237
1008 553 1112 001
2738 194 2394 587
34304 219 323
20771 16 831
354 063 226 530
32 370 664 30 501 657
51 750 853 47 068 236
42 787 772 42 832 399

g o ~
The accompanying notes from no. (1) to no. (42) form are an,integral part of these qons'okidated ﬁn%ncial statements.

Managing Director \ A

Mr. Hassan Ahmed Nodh

Auditor's Report "attached"

A/

7 |
! D

Chaigman

Mamdouh Fakhr El Dien Hussein El Rouby
'.',:j
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Ezz Steel Company
(An Egyptian Joint Stock Company)

Consolidated Statement of Income

For The Financial Year Ended 31 December:

2020 2019

Note Restated

No. LE {(000) LE (000)
Sales (net) (41-18) 38 625212 45713 678
Less:
Cost of sales 3) (37 405 403) (46 689 296)
Gross profit (loss) 1219 809 ( 975618)
Add / (T.ess):
Other operating revenues @ 105 669 123 007
Selling and marketing expenses 5) ( 603 787) ( 586 076)
Administrative and general expenses (6) (1517361) (1417 421)
Other operating expenses ™ { 227 940) { 465 830)
Operating loss (1023 610) (3321 938)
Add / {Yess):
Finance income (8) 94 847 117 346
Finance cost (8) (3899231 (4 881 953)
Foreign currency exchange {losses) gains (8) ( 135282) 77 080
Net finance cost (3 939 666) (4 687 527)
Net loss for the year before income tax (4 963 276) (8 009 465)
(Less)/Add:
Income tax ( 35539) ( 228 232)
Deferred tax (31-2) 313 958 126 444
Total Income Tax 278 419 ( 101 788)
Net foss for the year (4 684 857) (8 111 253)
Attributable to:
Owners of the holding company (3119 045) {6305 438)
Non-controlling interest (1565812) (1805 815)
Net loss for the year (4 684 857) (8 111 253)
Basic and diluted loss per share for the year (LE/share) ) ( 5.84) ( 11.81)

The accompanying notes from no. (1) to no. (42} form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Ezz Steel Company

{An Egyptian Joint Stock Company}

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For The Financial Year Ended 31 December :

Net loss for the year

{(Less)/Add:

Other comprehensive income items

Realized portion of modification surplus of fixed assets
(transferred to retained losses during the year)

Actuarial earnings (losses) from pension scheme
Foreign entities translation differences

Total comprehensive income

Attributable to:

Owners of the holding company

Non-controlling interest

2020 2019
Restated
LE (000) LE (000

( 4 684 857) (8 111 253)
( 174 467) ( 180 693)
3907 ( 11 709)
- ( 542 893)
(4 855417) (8 846 548)
(3229 786) (6825571)
(1625631) (2020977)
{4 855417) (8 846 548)

The accompanying notes from no. (1) to no. (42) form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



- —

ssay) yo yed [esBonn ue uwoy (Z§) ou 01 (1) 0w woay snou Futlveduross gy,

{130 £96 1) £€0 162 T — (pTI PST IT) — - (ree1L) {gze L2s s} S199PF 1 060 31 STEGILT . QZOUTI{IE Jo S8 30T
b6z 9v) Lr19ITT IS 601 D) (Lzo €91 1) - Q8L 8IL T} - BSLO6ET S6$ $TT - - plow2aERs 5, Aurdwod aq) §)m $0j E0L
Tk o) Foump

_ 6LOSET I - (6L0 SETT) - b6 78 — (258 2HE 1) $65 §T2 — - -1 o T r— q joeTuumazad oga e 2 OGEI0 VA AL,

Amedmoo Lrerprsqus -(§.09) Aredma)

(eeg6E ) L16€r) - (026 52 - (rL609zc) - VSO SETE - - - (1-11 oS Te|4 1 e A pas [ruopomy 9q) ABTEN J0 DI AL
- PISEOT T {ris 6011} - - - - - - - - weipisnas Jo (o ded 2 t U arenE 151 FoqparEed-ooa o)

6107 8ok 10§ =3 IRESQNE L JO SPLIPIAT a

{igse) 6051} - (707 } - - - (8z02) - - - 0 PrEng i makoydm 4 U 1831 341 OI-U0H 21 P AT KT ) O 0EGS I,
{0762 ) (ozé ) — . _ _ — _ _ _ _ 6107 Feak 30 sppLArp £ Auedurod Arepisqns ot reys 1SRRI Jap1anmes-0on L,
SIFPONIIEYS F, AUNAMED Y)IM SHOTDESHEN],

{2k v Buptap 52550) PAIRIAX 0) PRUBIEREDY

89% ¥L1 YT 1y - Yz EN _ _ _ PHTEIT _ _ — shste pxp J tnpdans wsgEagrpew Jo wagod TR
(BTp 558 ¥} (zE9s791) - 98L67L ) - - - s e (PpZETT) - - amoanpaarredRadwod oL
LOGE ¥or 1 - 05T - e - Wee - - - SUPS WO SIHRA ROIRP WY SIFS] ROy
[Teak o) Suunp 5501 PORIBIL 0} POLSURN)

(89b¥eLl ) bz 19} - @rzem) - - - - rzei) - - spsse povy u_m_ 10 s.ﬂ_&a oNEspo: j6 aofirod peakey
U] 2WMOOT] AR FIAWOS 1IN

(L8 ¥39+) Zigsos1} - (SYO 611 €) - - - (SpO6ITE) - - - Tead o) 1o 501 WK
TH3]] yHoTu| IA[SHIYFId o)

(LEg SETY) 61629 1 PISGOL T {srs pL69) — OSLBLILT (rze 1L (€80 ¥T6 €T) YL PEC T 060 8T SIESIL T PATIRY - 0Z0L/T/1 30 s ureg
leer seTy) ¥6L 629 I FIS 60T T {s¥s 16 9} — 08L BLLT (rzs 1) {esop16 €1} ¥9T ¥EL | 060 781 STESIL T BHEINY - GI0TIZITE Jo B amepEg
o5 521) TEP €66 FIS 601 1 (916891 7) TELB6 (LozgiL) - (598 Z86) (951 505 ) - - poALIEgT £, 29} 3 suoj YL
SIZ ook 305 sopuec IPISARS ) J0 SPBPIAP

(5009t ) (ors L1) - (o1531'} - - - (o1581) - - - SropAnEy 30 PrEDR poe K0 EA ST ANMIONTD S PEEe Atredinion g J0 eSS
(1£6 ¥21 ) (L6 vi} - _ - - - - - - - B1DE 1esd jo Spespiaty < fmedmos Liprsqns ar aes 1 Suponusoo-aon
- - - - TIT96 - - @1z 86) - - - SUOINQUISIP Spudpiatp Ty Smsory

(BEbp20 1) TE65L0 1 - (00p 0¢1 2) _ (o8 8cL) _ (L£1998) {9y co¢) _ _ Spredios ATIPISQUs 91 07 S0[IAqLID M o aSuimoard aq) U ASUEYD 2130 XA YL
FIS 5011 - FIS 6011 - - - - - — - - Arerpisqns I §o [eardes o STAL 34 OF 1IN 0 RonterIine Sy,
SN ONIIEYS FAUCGEE) ) SHOTEIRER]Y,

_ - - - - —_ - (xeaf ay) Supnp sasso] pan[ear o pruasREy)

£69 021 [ 7454 Pt ST ¥og STI £)33¥ paxy Jo sapdins sagragpom §o nopsed pazipedy
(8PS 9¥2 7} (LiG0z0 D) — (15528 9) _ (LLE SRE) - [ (PIE 521} — — BHNRY Smosn Iaswayaadmn w10L,
(€68 2¥5 ) (G15v51 } - (LLe 88€e) - [(TTH) - - - - - SR tenErsTEN TS HEEINg
{60L 11 ) {Ligs) - Z6e ) - - - {Z6c9 ) - - - e ustsmdd wrag 2 £450] [eIeT0Y
(4 aq) Fmmp ©350] PNIERL 01 PALR)SUER)

(e6g 081 ) {6ze95 ) - {r9g cz1) - - - - (boe gzl ) - - sposse o yo smpdns aoieYpoR Jo uopuod pozE
AN FABNIIITEO) TN

(esz1118) {8 3< 0 B - (8ek 50€ 9) - - - (8€r S0¢ 9) - - - PRI ~reak o 5 550] BN
WOoTE] SA]F s qFIdwey

BRE SSS ¥ oIrI99 L - BLS PGB T {T1286 ) PIESPE € (rz6rL ) IsLeri9) Y80S96 T 060 781 STESILT PoIEIIY -§I0TIT/L Jo sE aamEEy

TOe0F 31 {0027 Rr a1 QoI 1 [TET] wn a1 e x1 (T Fg Togor a1 oeoraT [CTH R N
Annba 1531y Arejpisqns ay) jo Lyube AIEIT spsse paxy ajop
[SRpjogaregs Boqenuer aranw) pdes o pIogaLey PIAKT SIS 3as30] Jo snjdung
("1IpPa) f[E0L -aoN WIRATHS J50)0) Auxdwod Ruiptog wpyng P "ERIeg fanseasy, poupciey sepEIgpoIy sanpy Tendey
Rogronuor-uey (m1ingQ) 7 (aey,
007 1€ S¥qWaoQ papud JEX [CReug] aqL g
Aynbz v B3uey]) 0 JHINRINOS PAEPIUSIC])
Aaedme)) pa1g 2y
- - T - [ = - - 1 i : — ] T 7 ~ - i 7 - - o o
— L. B [ T s Y 0 A A R RS ]

[



§

[

IR I

L

—

Ezz Steel Company
{An Egyptian Joint Stock Company)

Consolidated Statement of Cash flows
For The Financial Year Ended 31 December:

Note
No.
Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss for the year before income tax

Adjustments to reconcile Net losses to net cash
used in operating activities

Depreciation {11-1)
Amortization of other assets {15)
Amortization of accrued interest on treasury bills

Amortization of the difference from the change in the fair value of the long term lending
Capital (gains) / losses 4
Impairment loss on assets 0}
Interest & finance costs (8)
Provisions formed during the year (N
Differences of changing in liability of the supplementary pension scheme (26)
Gain on sale of investments (4)
Financial grants for the development of the gas station

Tax assesment differences

Foreign currency exchange differences

Changes in working capital
Inventory

Trade receivables, debtors and other debit balances

Trade payables, creditors and other credit balances

Change in lending to employees

Liability of the supplementary pension scheme

Net

Finance interests paid

Income tax paid

Used impairment of assets (19)
Used provisions 27
Net cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for purchase of fixed assets and projects under construction
Payments for purchase of investments in subsidiaries

Proceeds from retrieval of financial investments (treasury bills)
Payments for purchase of financial investments (treasury bills)

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Net proceeds from credit facilities

Payments for loans

Payments for credit facilities

Proceeds from loans and other liabilities

Finance lease payments

Change in time-deposits and restricted current accounts
Paid dividends to non-controlling interest

Paid dividends to employees and Board of Directors
Net cash provided by financing activities

Change in cash and cash eéuivalents during the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (20
Translation differences of financial statements of foreign entities

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {20

The accompanying notes from no. (1) to no. (42) form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-5-

Translation from Arabic

2020 2019
Restated
LE(000) LE(000)
(4 963 276) {8 009 465)
1431 468 1 455 843
5123 5458
{ 22 286) {3211
( 3363) { 2086)
( 493) 1964
2524 16 891
3 899231 4 881953
130 625 3252
28 578 53 468
- { 9150)
( 897) { 887
- 39 546
86 452 ( 125272)
593 686 {1691 696)
1150 320 4831624
(9 802 808) (6149 813)
11 218 256 2428 802
12 840 ( 6032)
(7795) { 977
3 164 499 { 588 097)
(2894 371) {4376 483)
( 69276) ( 53 730)
( 1348) -
(3092 { 1000)
196 412 (5019 310)
( 377 719) ( 676 615)
{ 636) ( 2501)
506 650 42 000
( 637 043) { 129276)
( 508 748) ( 766 392)
81373 6 441 591
( 101 443) ( 620 260)
(2125 088) -
2827717 -
( 39161) ( 32 843)
37 565 12373
( 2920) ( 367 741)
{ 3536) ( 41111)
674 507 5392 009
362171 ( 393 693)
1567 109 1978376
(2416 ( 17 574)
1926 864 1567 109
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Translation from Arabic

Ezz Stecl Company
(An Egyptian Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020

BACKGROUND

Basic Information

Al Ezz Steel Rebars Company “an Egyptian Joint Stock Company” was established under the
provisions of Law No. 159 of 1981 and was registered in the Commercial Register in Menofia
Governorate under No. 472 on April 2, 1994. The preliminary establishment contract and the
Company's statute were published in the Companies’ Gazette issue No. 231 of April 1994. The
Company is located in Sadat City.

The term of the company is 25 years from the date of registration of the company in the
commercial register. On October 24, 2018, the Company's Extraordinary General Assembly
decided to extend the company’s term for another 25 years starting from April 2, 2019, The
necessary procedures are being taken to amend the Company's Commercial Register in this regard,

The Extra-ordinary General Assembly in its meeting dated October 3, 2009 approved to change
the Company’s name to “Ezz Steel”, this amendment was registered in the Commercial Registry
on November 1, 2009,

The Company is located in 35 Lebanon street— El Mohandseen — Cairo — Arab Republic of Egypt.

The nominal shares of the company are being traded in the Egyptian stock exchange and London
stock exchange.

Subsidiaries

Al Ezz Rolling Mills Company (ERM) — an Egyptian joint Stock Company — was established
in 1986 under Law No. 43 of 1974, which was replaced by Law No. 8 of 1997, which was
replaced by Law No. 72 of 2017 by issuance investment law.

Al Ezz El Dekheila for Steel - Alexandria (EZDK) — an Egyptian Joint Stock Company — was
established in 1982 as a Joint Investment Company under Law No. 43 of 1974 which was replaced
by Law No. 8 of 1997, adjusted by Law No. 72 of 2017 by issuance investment law.

Al Ezz El Dekheila for Steel - Alexandria (EZDK) has the following subsidiaries:

Al Ezz Flat Steel Company (EFS) — an Egyptian Joint Stock Company — was established in
1998 under the provisions of the Investment Guarantees and Incentives Law No. 8 of 1997, which
was replaced Law No. 72 of 2017 by issuance investment law.

Iron for Industrial, Trading and Constructing Steel Company (Contra Steel) — an Egyptian
joint stock company — was established according to the decree of the specialized committee in the

Ministry of Economy and Foreign Trade (corporate fine) under the provisions of Law No. 159 of
1981.

Misr for Pipes & Casting Industry Company — an Egyptian joint stock company — was
established in August 29, 1992 under the provisions of Law No. 159 of 1981.

The Purpose of the Company and its subsidiaries

The Company and its subsidiaries purpose is the manufacturing, trading and distribution of iron
and steel products of all kinds and associated products and services.

The following is an analysis of investments in the subsidiary Companies of Ezz Steel Company
which are included in the consolidated financial statements:

-6-
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Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
Percentage Share Percentage Share
% %
Al Ezz Rolling Mills 64.061 (Direct and Indirect) 54,58 (Direct and Indirect)
Company (ERM) through Al Ezz El Dekheila through Al Ezz El Dekheila
Al Ezz El Dekheila For Steel . .
- Alexandria (EZDK) 64.06 Direct 54.59 Direct
.06 (Direct & Indirect 54.59 (Direct & Indir
Al Bzz Flat Steel (EFS) 64.06 (Direct & Indirect) (Diree ect)

Through Al Ezz El Dekheila Through Al Ezz El Dekheila

Iron for Industrial, Trading

and Constructing Steel 57.657 (Indirect) 49.13 (Indirect)

Through Al Ezz El Dekheila ~ Through Al Ezz El Dekheila

Company (Contra Steel)
Misr for Pipes & Casting 55.16 (Indirect) 47.49 (Indirect)
Industry Company Through Al Ezz E] Dekheila Through Al Ezz El Dekheila

The main financial indicators for the company and some of it's subsidiaries:

The company and some of its subsidiaries have incurred retained losses amounted to L.E 15.527
Billion as of December 31, 2020 included in company’s consolidated statement of financial
position, also liabilities exceed assets (Deficit in Shareholder’s Equity) with an amount of L.E
8.96 Billion at that date, as Al Ezz Flat Steel company (EFS) -subsidiary company- has incurred
accumulated retained losses till December 31,2020 with an amount of LE 12,092 Billion, which
deferred tax asset was recognized for it at that date with an amount of LE 910 Million, Also Al
Ezz Rolling Mills company (ERM) -subsidiary company- has incurred accumulated retained
losses till December 31,2020 amounted to LE 4.773 Billion, which deferred tax asset was
recognized for it at that date with an amount of LE 525 Million, hence the total amount of these
deferred tax assets is amounted to LE 1.436 Billion stated in deferred tax assets in the
consolidated statement of financial position at that date. The company's management has prepared
a budget for the years from 2021 to 2026 in which it adopts the achievement of profit and improves
the results of operations during these years, in addition to a plan of obtaining the support and
financing required for operations from Al Ezz El Dekheila For Steel — Alexandria (subsidiary
company), which will reflect positively on the operational and financial indicators in the
subsequent years, and to have the tax benefits of the tax carried forward losses.

The following is the representation of the restructuring plan of subsidiaries:

On August 4, 2019 the Board of Directors of Al Ezz El Dekheila agreed to buy 42 million share
from El Ezz for flat steel ( a subsidiary company) with a percentage of contribution representing
56% which is the rest of 100% of company’s shares, and that after deducting the share of Al Ezz
El Dekheila with a percentage of 44% and number of shares of 89.8 Million share with a
percentage of 100% from the shares of El Ezz for Rolling Mills Company according to the fair
value of the shares. '

The board of directors approved the studies of the financial consultant of the fair value, and it
represents an amount of LE 1 176.85 per share, the fair value of El Ezz Flat Steel share
representing USD 10.09 per share and the fair value of for El Ezz For Rolling Mills share
representing LE 23.07 per share.

Also, the increase of Al Ezz El Dekheila For Steel authorized share capital was approved
amounting to LE 1.5 Billion to be LE 4 Billion, also the increase of authorized share capital by
13 Million share with a 1 176.85 fair value per share, representing 100 par value plus 1 076.85
shares premium, and the old shareholders were invited to buy 12 175 202 shares from the new
issued shares in cash or by using the credit balances resulted from the acquisition by EZZ El
Dekheila For Steel of their shares in el Ezz for Flat Steel and El Ezz For Rolling Mills according
to the percentage of their contribution, and allocating the rest of shares representing 824 798
share for the rest shareholders in El Ezz for Flat Steel (EFS) and El Ezz for Rolling Mills (ERM)
for their credit balances resulting from the acquisition.

.-



A R R S R B

]

]

—

Translation from drabic
Ezz Steel Company

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

- On September 22, 2019 the unordinary general assembly of El Ezz El Dekhelia approved the
previously mentioned transaction.

- On October 3, 2019 the BOD of Ezz steel approved the acquisition transaction by Al Ezz El
Dekheila of all the shares owned by El Ezz steel in El Ezz for flat steel and El Ezz for Rolling
Mills according to the previously mentioned acquisition transaction

- Within the fourth quarter in 2019, the ownership of 88 921 050 share and 35 289 000 shares of
EL Ezz For Rolling Mills and El Ezz For Flat Steel was transferred with an amount equals LE

7 809 993 calculated according to the price for the shares mentioned above of Ezz El Dekhelia
For Steel.

- During May 2020 the increase in El Ezz Dekheila’s capital was completed and this was
confirmed in the commercial register for the mentioned company on May 17, 2020 and the
company bought 5 204 842 share from the shares related to the increase in capital for

d

LE 6 125 318 calculated according to the share price mentioned above by using a portion of the

credit balance resulted from the mentioned above ownership transfer transaction.

- The effect of the above-mentioned transactions between the group’s subsidiaries were eliminated

when preparing the consolidated financial statements.

1.4 Issuance of consolidated financial statements

- These consolidated financial statements were approved by the company’s BOD for issuance on

April 1,2021.

2. Basis for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements

2.1  Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Egyptian

Accounting Standards and in light of Egyptian laws and regulations related to.

2.2  Basis of measurement

]

These consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost convention, except for
assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value,

During 2016, the Group’s management adopted the special accounting treatment stated in annex
(A) of the modified Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (13) “The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates”, the cost and accumulated depreciation of some fixed assets categories are
modified using modification factors which are stated in the above-mentioned annex, as described

oL

O

U

Lo

in details in (Note no. 41-2).

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of Egyptian pounds

2.4  Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Egyptian Accounting
Standards requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses and

the actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the current circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any differences to
accounting estimates are recognized in the year in which the estimate is revised if these
differences affect the year of the revision and future periods then these differences are recognized
in the year of the revision and future periods.

-8-
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Translation from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

2.5

2.6

And the following represents the most significant items in which assumption and professional
judgment have been made:

*  Impairment loss on assets.

Recognition of deferred tax assets.
Contingencies, liabilities and Provisions.
Operational useful life of fixed assets.

* % x

Fair value measurement

The fair value of financial instruments is determined based on the market value of financial
instruments or similar financial instruments at the financial position without deducting any
estimated future costs of sale. Financial assets values are determined at current prices for the
purchase of those assets, while determining the value of financial liabilities at the current prices,
which would settle those commitments.

In the absence of an active market to determine the fair value of financial instruments, the fair
value is estimated using various valuation techniques, taking into account recent transactions
prices, guided by the current fair value of other substantially similar instruments - discounted
cash flow method - or any other methods to produce reliable results.

When using the discounted cash flow method as a method of evaluation, future cash flows are
estimated based on the best estimate of the management. Discount rate used is determined in the
light of the prevailing market price at the date of the financial positon for financial instruments
similar in nature and terms.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include assets, liabilities and result of operations of Ezz
Steel Company (Holding Company) and all subsidiary companies which are controlled by the
Holding Company, the Company controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has right to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee.

All inter-Company balances, transactions and unrealized profits were eliminated.

Non-controlling interest in the net equity and in net eamings of subsidiaries are included in a
separate item “non-controlling interest™ in the consolidated financial statements, and is calculated
to be equivalent to their share in the carrying amount of the subsidiaries net assets at the date of
the consolidated financial statements. Non-controlling share in profits and losses of the subsidiary
companies are included in a separate line item in the consolidated statement of income.

The provided profit and losses from acquisition or selling shares from non-controlling interest
without changing of the holding Company’s control, it’s directly stated in the shareholders’
equity.

3. COST OF SALES

Note 2020 2019
No. LE (000) LE (000)
Raw Materials 21 679432 26 335260
Salaries & wages 2025044 1 862 067
Fixed assets depreciation (11-1) 1386 805 1 408 676
Other assets amortization (15) 5123 5458
Supplementary pension scheme cost 22 442 41 889
Manufacturing overhead expenses 11324 271 14 521 179
Manufacturing cost 36443 117 44 274 529
Change in inventory—finished products and work in process 962 286 2414767
37 405 403 46 689 296
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Ezz Steel Company

Translation from Arabic

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

. OTHER OPERATING REVENUES

Gain on sale of investments available for sale
Capital gains

Other revenues

. SELLING & MARKETING EXPENSES

Note
No.
Salaries & wages
Advertising expenses
Fixed assets depreciation (a1-1
Supplementary pension scheme cost
Other expenses
6. ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL EXPENSES
Note
No.
Salaries & Wages
Spare parts and maintenance expenses
Fixed assets depreciation i-1)
Supplementary pension scheme cost
Other expenses
7. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Note
No.
Donations
Impairment of assets (19)
Formed provisions during the year (27)
Capital loss
Other expenses

-10-

2020 2019
LE (000) LE (000)
= 9150
493 -
105 176 113 857
105 669 123 007
2020 2019
LE (000) LE (000)
101 635 107 051
106 432 106 059
578 565
1587 2962
393 555 369 439
603 787 586 076
2020 2019
LE (000) LE (000)
904 991 761 865
11402 17 338
44 085 46 602
4 549 8617
552 334 582999
1517 361 1417421
2020 2019
LE (000) LE (000)
76 190 187 879
2524 16 891
130 625 3252
- 1 964
18 601 255 844
227 940 465 830
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Transiation from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

8. FINANCE INCOME AND COST

2020 2019
Restated
LE (000) LE (000)
Finance and interest income 94 847 117 346
Interest & finance cost * (3899 231) (4 881 953)
Foreign currency exchange differences (losses) gains (135 282) 77 080
Net finance costs (3 939 666) (4 687 527)
* Restatement was made to some of the comparative figures as shown in note no, (40).
9. BASIC AND DILUTED LOSSES PER SHARE FOR THE YEAR
2020 2019
Restated
Owners of the company share
Net loss for the year (LE 000)* (3 119 045) (6 305 438)
Weighted average number of outstanding shares during the 533 802 313 533 802 313
year (share)**
Basic and diluted loss per share for the year (5.84) (11.81)

(LE / share)*

* Restatement was made to some of the comparative figures as shown in note no. (40).

** 9 462 714 shares were eliminated for calculating the weighted average number of outstanding shares

during the year ended December 31, 2020 which represent treasury stocks (Note no. 23-1).

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

1 [

[

- The employees of the company and some of its subsidiaries are granted an end of service benefits
through insurance and provident fund for the employees of Al Ezz Industrial Group registered on
22/2/2000, that according to conditions and determinants included in the fund regulation. The company's
contribution to the fund is represented in defined contribution where the company pays all the saving and
insurance subscriptions according to the conditions and the percentage mentioned in the fund regulations
and this is based on the subscription fees that is determined using the monthly basic salary at 1/1/2000 in

I U U A BV M U B I

addition to the annual salary increase.

The value of the of the subscriptions incurred by the parent company and some

in salaries and wages in the statement of income (against L.E 46 932 X for year 2019).
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of its subsidiary
companies for the financial year ended December 31, 2020 amounted to L.E 48 131 K has been included
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Transiation from Arabic

P Ezz Steel Company
— Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)
L 11.2 Leased fixed assets:
- Fixed assets include leased assets as of December 31, 2020 as follows:
B Accumulated
! Cost at depreciation at Net at Net at
B 31/12/2020 31/12/2020 31/12/2020 31/12/2019
LE (000) LE (000) LE (000) LE (000}
[ Land * 70 000 - 70 000 70 000
o Building ** 145 000 16 917 128 083 131 708
215 000 16 917 198 083 201 708
[ ] * During 2018, the company signed a contract of sale and lease back for 7 years ending 2025 for a
plot of land owned by the company, Land cost amounted to L.E. 70 Million, as shown in note no.
[] (29), the company issued an official power of attorney cannot be canceled or revoked in favor of
HD Lease in the signing of the initial and final purchase and sale contracts and the final transfer
[ of ownership to it or to other in front of the Real Estate Authority for the above-mentioned plot of
3 land.
Y
b ** During 2016, the company concluded a financial lease contracts for two floors in Nile Plaza
u building for 8 years ending 2024 as shown in note no. (29).
M 11.3 The following is the movement during the year for modification surplus of fixed assets which is
o resulting from the adoption of the special accounting treatment related to dealing with the effects
M of floating foreign currency exchanges rates which is included in Annex (A) of the Modified
Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (13) “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates™:
(] LE (000)
] Modification surplus of fixed assets at floating foreign exchange rate date 4013 795
(November 3, 2016)
[] Income tax (903 104)
M Net modification surplus of fixed assets after income tax 3110 691
o Recognized portion till December 31, 2019 (695 344)
Net modification surplus of fixed assets at December 31, 2019 2 415 347
L ecognized portion during the year ended December 31,
B R d d h ded D ber 31, 2020 (174 467)
B Net modification surplus of fixed assets at December 31, 2020 2240 880
] Attributable to:
ﬁ Owners of the Company 1 446 615
L] Non-controlling interest 794 265
] 2 240 880
L]
B 12. PROJECTS UNDER CONSTRUCTION
L] 31/12/2020 31/12/2019
[ LE (000) LE (000)
[] Constructions expansion 19 572 78 769
. Machinery under installation 114 186 168 268
L] Advance payments for purchase of fixed assets 78 902 87934
B 212 660 334971
L]
L]

L -13-
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Transiation from Arabic
Ezz Steel Company

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

13. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
LE (000) LE (000)

13-1 Investments in subsidiaries
(Not included in the consolidated financial statements }
- Al Ezz for medical industries

(30% owned by Ezz Steel company and 30% by Al Ezz El 600 -
Dekheila for Steel — Egypt (EZDK)

The subsidiary company was established on August 11, 2020,
10% of the capital was paid, the company did not practice any
activities yet to date, and the company hasn’t prepared any
financial statements yet.

13-2 Investments in associates

- Egyptian German Co. for Flat Steel Marketing (Franco) (L.L.C) 90 90
(under liquidation)
(50% owned by Al Ezz El Dekheila for Steel — Alexandria)

- Al Ezz El Dekheila for Steel — Egypt (EZDK) 25 25
(50% owned by Al Ezz El Dekheila for Steel — Alexandria)

- EZDK Steel UK LTD — (Note no. 38-1)

(50% owned by Al Ezz El Dekheila for Steel — Alexandria) 1 1
13-3 Investments available-for-sale
- Arab Company for Special Steel (SAE) 17726 17726
(5% owned by Ezz El Dekheila for Steel — Alexandria).
- The Egyptian Company for Cleaning and Security Services 80 80
(30.80% owned by Al Ezz Steel Company)
- Atlantic Pacific Transport Ltd. 4 016 4014

(5% owned by Iron for Industrial, Trading and Constructing
Steel Company (Contra Steel)).

22 538 21936
Less:
- Impairment loss in Arab Company for Special Steel 17 726 17726
- Impairment loss in EZDK Steel UK LTD ' 1 1
- Impairment loss in Egyptian German Co. for Flat Steel Marketing 90 _
(Franco) L.L.C (under liquidation)
Impairment loss in long term investments (Note no.19) 17 817 17 727
4721 4 209

14. LONG TERM LENDING TO OTHERS
Long term lending is represented in the following:
Note  31/12/2020 31/12/2019

No.  LE (000) LE (000)

Employees’ advance payments 75 623 85 000

Employees’ loans present value 31241 39239
106 864 124 239

Less:

Employees’ loans and advances due within one year (18) (52 143) (60 510)

Long term employees’ loans and advances 54721 63 729

Less:

Differences resulted from change in the fair value of long-

term employees’ loans (9 341) (12 705)
45380 51 024

-14-
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Ezz Steel Company

Transiation from Arabic

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

OTHER ASSETS

The amount is represented in the paid-up amount by Al Ezz Flat Steel Company (EFS) —
subsidiary company — to Industrial Development Authority for the approval of expanding the steel rebar

production license:

Cost at January 1, 2020
(Less) / Add:
Amortization for the year
Translation differences
Net at December 31, 2020

INVENTORY

Raw materials and supplies
Work in process

Finished products

Spare parts and supplies
Goods in transit

Letters of credit

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLE

Trade receivables
Trade receivables — Related parties
Notes receivable

Less:
Impairment loss on trade receivables

DEBTORS AND OTHER DEBIT BALANCES

Deposits with others

Tax Authority

Tax Authority - usufruct
Tax Authority — VAT
Customs Authority
Accrued revenues
Prepaid expenses
Alexandria Port Authority

Employees’ loans and advance payments due within a year

Letters of credit cash margin
Letters of guarantee cash margin
Due from related parties *

Advance payment under the account of employees’ dividends

The Cairo Economic Court
Other debit balances

Less:

Impairment loss on debtors and other debit balances

LE (000)
19 828
(5123)
_ 21153
35 858
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
LE (600) LE (000)
2324 738 2515915
319757 766 950
1741922 2257015
1980 166 2111 687
281 397 193719
28 776 13 812
6 676 756 7 859 098
Note 31/12/2020 31/12/2019
No. LE (000) LE (000)
1682 047 1147974
(32-1) 8 731 7596
1215125 734 022
2 905903 1 889 594
(19 (30 121) (29 657)
2 875782 1 859 937
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
Note Restated
No. LE (000) LE (000)
1231024 1219902
(18-1) 1224 017 1 080 530
(18-2) 127 477 127 477
862 167 463 005
22 503 76 844
587 97
69 041 65 606
19 570 17 337
(14 52143 60 510
4 491 2520
(33-1) 135 1085
(32-2) 20 531 20218
35816 36 573
(18-3) 35060 35060
(18-4) 750 651 332 844
4 455213 3539 608
(19 (50 509) (49 887)
4 404 704 3489721

* Restatement was made to some of the comparative figures as shown in note no. (40).
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Translatior from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

18-1

18-2

18-3

18-4

The Tax Authority balances include an amount of LE 254.2 Million represents an advance payment
under the account of scheduling the tax claims of Al Ezz El Dekheila for Steel — Alexandria —
a subsidiary with respect to-the flat steel projects penalties and fines for years 2000/2004 according
to what is mentioned in detail in Note no. (35-3-1) in addition to an amount of LE 219 Million which
represents the advance payment under the account of corporate tax inspection differences of Al Ezz
El Dekheila for Steel - Alexandria for years 2005/2008.

Tax Authority — usufruct balances represent the value of advance payments of additional sales tax
for the usufruct for Al Ezz El Dekheila for Steel — Alexandria — company on the mining ores dock
and storing area in El Dekheila Port which is amounted to LE 127.5 Million ~ (Note no. 38-2).

The Cairo Economic Court balance represents the amount due to the company in the previously
paid amounts after deducting the penalties that judged in the misdemeanour No. 368 of the year
2013 related to the monopoly of Steel Bars product against some officials of the group companies
that the Court of Cassation issued on November 25, 2014 which is amounted to LE 20.5 Million
and the legal procedures are in process to redeem this amount from the court.

The other debit balances item includes an amount of LE 49.5 Million represents 15% of the license
related to the second production line which Ezz Rolling Mills Company- a subsidiary company-
paid on February 2012.

IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON ASSETS

Formed Used
during the during the
Note 1/1/2020 year year 31/12/2020

Impairment loss on: No. LE (009) LE (000 LE (000) LE (000)
Long term investments (13) 17 727 S0 - 17 817
Trade and notes receivable 17y 29657 464 - 30 12)
Debtors and other debit balances (18) 49 887 1970 (1348) 50 509
Advance payments for suppliers 2 332 - - 2332
99 603 2524 (1 .348) 100 779
20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
LE (000) LE (000)
Banks - time deposits 232370 37128
Banks — current accounts 1867 530 1294 497
Cheques under collection 59 091 503 665
Cash on hand 64 095 15263
2223086 1850 553
Less:
Banks — overdraft (155 949) (180 005)
Restricted time deposits and current accounts within the credit
conditions grantedpby the bank for the Group companies (140273) (103 439)
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 1 926 864 1567 109

21. CAPITAL
21.1 Authorized capital
The company's authorized capital is LE 8 Billion.

21.2 The issued and paid in capital

The issued and paid capital after the increase is LE 2 716 325 K (Two Billion, Seven Hundred and
Sixteen Million, Three Hundred and Twenty-Five Thousand Egyptian Pound) distributed over
543 265 027 share with a par value of LE 5 per share paid in full. The issued and paid in capital after the
increase was registered in the Commercial Register with No. 1176 Menouf city on October 30, 2008.

The shareholders and the percentages of their contribution at the date of the financial position are as

follows:

-16-
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Translation from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
Shareholder Number of Par Value Contribution Contribution
Shares L.E % %
- Al Ezz Group holding for industry
and investment (Ezz industries) * 208 630 599 1 043 152 995 38.403 38.403
- Egyptian Giobal Company for _ _ _ 11.294
Commercial Investments (L.L.C)* )
- Egyptian International Company for _ _ _ 7439
Industrial Investments (L.L.C)* :
- Metallurgical Investment _ _ _ 7439
Development Company (L.L.C)* ’
- National Company for Metallurgical _ _ _ 1.125
Industries Development (L.L.C)* '
- Engineer / Ahmed Abd El Aziz Ezz* 148 302 540 741 512 700 27.298 0.001
- Al Ezz for Rolling mills
(subsidiary company) 9462714 47313 570 1.742 1.742
- Others 176 869 174 884 345 870 32.557 32.557
543 265 027 2716 325135 100.000 100.000

*  Some subsidiaries of “Al Ezz Group Holding company for Industry & Investment “Ezz Industries” have
sold their shares in Ezz steel company on April 21, 2020 which represent a percentage of contribution of
27.29% for Eng/ Ahmed Abdelaziz Ezz, consequently the percentage of the mentioned company
contribution (direct and indirect) in Ezz steel company after this transaction is 38.83% on December 31
2020, rather than 65.25% until April 2020.

22. RESERVES

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
LE (000) LE (000)
Legal reserve* 1358163 1358 163
Other reserves (Additional paid in capital) ** 2620 756 2 620 756
;Il‘igas id&gg?;uéz ;ﬁillﬂtmg from the acquisition of additional percentage in (3 796 829) (3796 829)
182 090 182 090

Legal reserve: 5% of net profit should be appropriated to form legal reserve; the Company will stop
appropriation once the legal reserve balance reaches 50% of the Company’s issued capital; in case the
reserve balance becomes less than stated percentage, the appropriation will continue and The legal
reserve may be used for the benefit of the Company based on a proposal by the Board of Directors after
approval by the General Assembly.

** Other reserves: Additional paid in capital resulted from capital increase for the acquisition of Al Ezz El
Dekheila for Steel shares, and bonds converted to shares.

23. TREASURY STOCKS

23.1 Treasury stocks as of December 31, 2020 represent the value of 9 462 714 shares of Ezz Steel Company

owned by Al Ezz Rolling Mills Company (ERM) — (subsidiary company) which amounting to
LE 71 921 K, and they are classified as treasury stocks for the consolidation purposes.

23.2 On January 5, 2021 the parent company’s Board of Directors decided to purchase treasury shares with a
maximum of 1% of the paid-up capital of the company and a maximum of one Million shares, the
Managing Director was delegated to set prices and the period for purchasing treasury shares within the
company’s available sources of financing and liquidity, the Financial Regulatory Authority approved
this transaction. The total number of shares purchased until January 25, 2021 is 910 481 Shares with an
amount of L.E 10 381 K.

-17-
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Translation from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

24. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLE

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
Due within Long term Total Total

one year Note No. (30) Restated

LE (000) LE (000) LE (000} LE (000}
Trade payables * 3719194 - 3719194 5192 623
Notes payable * 1 707 492 3531106 5238 598 1 147 689
5426 686 3531106 8957792 6 340 312
Deferred interest (244 860) (595 303) (840 163) (144 075)
5181 826 2 935 803 8117629 6 196 237

24.1 As of December 31, 2020, trade and notes payable include an amount of installments due to the
Electricity and natural gas supplying Companies, the company and its subsidiaries made an agreement
with the mentioned companies to reschedule the payment of dues which amounted to L.E 4 410.635
Million to be paid on maximum of 48 monthly installment beginning from the date of the agreement, in
addition to an annual interest stated on the rescheduling agreement mentioned above.

24.2 The trade payables item includes as of 31/12/2020 the equivalent to L.LE 1 155 996 K due to the
supplier Danielli. During the subsequent period, Al Ezz Flat Steel Company and Al Ezz Rolling Mills
Company (subsidiary companies) have concluded a settlement agreement on 27/1/2021 as it was agreed
with the mentioned supplier to reschedule the payment of the dues and the added interest according to
the following:

- The liability due to the supplier according to the purchase invoices equivalent to L.E. 1 022 033 K in

addition to the calculated interest on it starting from 1/11/2020 is paid in quarterly installments ends
in 2026.

- The settlement agreement includes that the supplier will waive the right to due interest which
calculated on the liability of supplying machinery and equipment during the prior years for the period
from the invoice due date until 31/10/2020 which is equivalent to L.E 214 981 X and stated in the
balance due to the supplier as of 31/12/2020, this is in case of the company paying all the quarterly
installments based on the settlement agreement.

- The company and Al Ezz El Dekheila for Steel- Alexandria signed joint guarantees in favor of the
above-mentioned supplier to guarantee that the mentioned subsidiary companies would pay its dues
stated in the seftlement agreement.

According to the seftlement agreement, the portion due for payment for the supplier in 2021 is
equivalent to L.E. 116 468 K, and the remaining portion of the dues will be paid up to 10/12/2026.
Restatement and reclassification were made to some of the comparative figures as shown in note no. (40).

25. CREDITORS AND OTHER CREDIT BALANCES

*

31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Note Restated

. No. LE (000) LE (000)
Accrued interest* 631 889 632308
Accrued expenses 1239703 850 727
Tax Authority 417 820 321 968
Performance guarantee retention 58 621 36813
Sales tax instalments 06 483 96 483
Dividends payable 1 606 1602
Due to related parties * (32-3) 109 183 348 208
Deferred revenue for grants (30-2) 817 897
Other credit balances 182 072 105 581
2738 194 2 394 587

* Restatement and reclassification were made to some of the comparative figures as shown in note no.

(40).
-18-
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Transiation from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

LIABILITY OF THE SUPPLEMENTARY PENSION SCHEME

As of the first of January 2013, according to decision of the Board of Directors of Al Ezz El Dekheila for
Steel - Alexandria dated December 27, 2012, the Company resolved to grant the employees of the
company the benefit of supplementary pension scheme as well as Contra Steel company, for the benefit
of any case of retirement at the age of sixty, death or occupational disability of any employee as the
company grants all the employees a fixed monthly pension at the age of sixty for ten years and the
pension amount is determined based on the year of disbursement and the subscription is collected from
the employees of the company based on their age categories while the company bears the remaining cost.
The cost of the supplementary pension scheme during the year ended December 31, 2020 amounted to
L.E 30 Million charged to the consolidated financial statement according to the actuary’s report issued
annually.

Note 31/12/2020 31/12/2019
No. LE (000) LE (000)
Balance at the beginning of January 196 732 132 532
Add:
Present service cost 2 841 32470
Return cost 25737 20 998
Amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of income 28 578 53 468
225310 186 000
Actuarial (profits) losses from the defined benefits scheme for (3907) 11709
Employees paid subscriptions during the year 7 982 8318
229 385 206 027
Less:
Paid pensions during the period / year (11 885) (9295)
Total liabilities of supplementary pension scheme 217 500 196 732
Distributed as follows:
Included in current liabilities 20771 16 831
Included in long-term liabilities (30) 196 729 179 901
217 500 196 732

The main actuarial assumptions used by the company according to the study prepared by the actuary are
represented as follows: -
Average assumptions to determine the liabilities of the benefits = 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

A~ Average discount rate 14.06 % 14 %
B- Average inflation rate 14.5 % 3.63%
Average assumptions to determine the net cost of the benefits 31/12/2020  31/12/2019
A- Average discount rate ' 14 % 18 %
B- Average inflation rate 363 % 16 %

Sensitivity Analysis of the system:
The following is the impact of the sensitivity assumptions movement of the discount rate related to the
liabilities/cost of the supplementary pension scheme benefits according to study prepared by the actuary:

Discount rate Discount rate
17.5% 18.5%
LE (000) LE (000)
Liability current cost 137 342 127 531
Service cost (current and return) 21 956 20781
PROVISIONS
Formed durin Used during
1/1/2020 the year £ the year 31/12/2020
LE (000} LE (000) LE (000) LE (000)
Tax provision and claims 224 575 130 625 (3092) 352108
Employees Lawsuits provision 1 955 - - 1955
226 530 130 625 (3 092) 354 063

-19-
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28.2

Translation from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

Ezz Steel Company (Holding company)

On January 18, 2015, the company signed an agreement with the National Bank of Egypt and the Arab
African International Bank (security agent) to grant the company a joint long term loan amounted to LE
1.7 Billion due within 7 years from the date of signing the contract, the purpose of the loan is to
restructure the banks credit facilities granted to the company through paying the current liabilities due to
the banks, according to the agreement the company will issue an official irrevocable power of attorney
authorizing the security agent for itself and on behalf of the banks to conclude and register a first degree
fond de commerce mortgage on the company including Sadat factory within six months from the first
withdrawal date also the borrower should keep his share in the subsidiaries without any amendments, as
will keeping some financial ratios and indicators that is specified in the loan agreement during the year
of the agreement. It will be paid on 26 non equal quarterly instalment, the first instalment accrued on
August 2015 starting from the ending of first six months of the first withdrawal on February 5, 2015 with
an average return of 3.5% above Corridor published from the Central Bank of Egypt paid every three
months.

The commission of arrangement and finance cover guarantee (transaction cost of the loan) is 7.5 per
thousand amounting LE 12.75 Million has been paid when the company got the loan, and the balance
appears after deducting the amortization of the period from the date of obtaining the loan till December
31, 2020 deducted from the loan balance.

The instalments paid until December 31, 2020 amounted to LE 895 Million (against LE 895 Million
December 31, 2019).

The company has benefited from the central bank of Egypt initiative related to postponing the credit
maturities for six months, ending in September 15, 2020 and no additional fines or fees applied on
postponing the payment based on the instructions of the Central Bank of Egypt on March 15, 2020 and
it’s appendixes, related to the precautious procedures against the effect of corona virus pandemic.

During the year and after the end of the period of postponing payment of the interest according to the
Central Bank initiative, the banks which granted the loans have modified the instalments with an amount
of L.E 152 479 K according to an appendix of the loan, the amount represents the accrued interest on the
loan balance for the period from 3/11/2019 to 31/12/2020 to pay the loan plus interest in 16 quarterly
installments starting from March 31, 2021 to December 31, 2024 , the interest rate was modified to 1.5%
above the Corridor rate for the first year and 2% above the Corridor rate starts from second year from the
date of activating the loan appendix.

Al Ezz El Dekheila for Steel — Alexandria (Subsidiary)

The Company obtained a revolving medium-term credit facility from National Bank of Egypt amounted
LE 800 Million for 3 years ending in October 17, 2021 and the balance as of December 31, 2020 is
LE 527.05 Million.

The Company obtained a revolving medium-term credit facility from Qatar National Bank — Al Ahly
amounted to LE 1.5 Billion or its equivalent in foreign currencies. Its balance amounted to LE 1 248.60
Million as at December 31, 2020 whose due date is January 2021.

The Company has made an agreement with the Export Development Bank of Egypt to acquire a
revolving medium-term credit facility, whose due date is April 2022, amounted to LE 600 Million or its
equivalent in foreign currency. Its balance amounted to LE 487.25 Million as at December 31, 2020

The Company obtained from the Arab African International Bank (AAIB) a revolving medium-term
credit facility whose due date is July 2023 with a total amount of USD 158 Million or its equivalent in
local currency. Its balance amounted to LE 1 403.81 Million as of December 31, 2020 and a part in
foreign currency amounted to L.E 226.43 Million equivalent to USD 14.32 Million.

The Company obtained from a joint medium term credit facility from Bank Misr and National Bank of
Egypt to finance the working capital of Al Ezz Rolling Mills Company and Al Ezz Flat Steel Company
(subsidiaries companies), that Bank Misr is the security agent and National Bank of BEgypt as the
revenue calculation bank (Indirect contributor through Alahly Capital company for investments) whose
due date is July 19, 2021 renewable annually after the agreement of all included banks with total amount
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Transiation from Arabic
Ezz Steel Company

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

of L.E 3 Billion or it’s equivalent in USD , its balance amounted to L.E 1.593 Billion as of December 31,
2020.

The company Transferred part of the existing debt to a medium — term loan from Qatar National Bank
Al Ahly (as a part of the company’s financial restructure plan) with an amount of USD 69.5 Million and
the loan is to be paid in twenty-six quarter annual instalment ending at August 31, 2025. The balance as
of December 31, 2020 amounted to USD 51.83 Million equivalent to LE 819.19 Million.

The company Transferred part of the existing debt to a medium — term loan from Arab African
International bank (as a part of the company’s financial restructure plan) with an amount of USD 61.5
Million and the loan is to be paid in twenty-eight quarter annual instalment ending at November 28,

2025. The balance as of December 31, 2020 amounted to USD 44 Million equivalent to LE 695.42
Million.

The company obtained a medium-term loan from bank of Alexandria for the purpose of restructuring
part of the outstanding debt by USD 50 Million. The loan is to be paid in 26 quarter annual instalment
ending at January 15, 2026. The balance as of December 31, 2020 is amounted to USD 41.23 Million
equivalent to LE 651.65 Million.

The company obtained a medium-term loan from HSBC to finance the development and construction of
the second direct reduction plant at an amount of EURO 12.5 Million and LE 80 Million. the loan is to
be paid in 12 Semi-annual instalments ending on January 15, 2026, the balance as of December 31, 2020
is amounted to LE 46.88 Million and a portion of foreign currency amounted to USD 11.097 Million
equivalent to LE 175.40 Million.

The company obtained a medium-term loan from NBK for the purpose of restructuring part of the
outstanding debt by USD 20 Million. The loan is to be paid in 26 quarter annual instalment ending at

August 28, 2026. The balance as of December 31, 2020 is amounted to USD 17.71 Million equivalent to
LE 279.91 Million.

Al Ezz Flat Steel (Subsidiary)

The Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS) which replaced the National Westminster Bank acts as the inter-
creditor agent for Al Ezz Flat Steel Company - a subsidiary - as well as an agent for the international
syndicated loans in which nine banks participated.

According to the loans agreements, the National Bank of Egypt acts as the Onshore Security Agent, and
the Royal Bank of Scotland acts as the Offshore Security Agent. The most significant guarantees
provided are represented in real-estate mortgage and commercial pledge on the land, the tangible and
intangible assets of the company, a possessory lien on the inventory and assignment of the company's

rights stated in the contracts of construction, supply, technical support agreements and insurance policies
in favour of the banks.

The interests on the National Bank of Egypt (NBE) and SACE guaranteed loans is calculated in USD
based on a variable interest rate related to LIBOR. The interests on Banque Misr loan is calculated in
Egyptian pound based on Lending and discount rate declared by the central bank of Egypt.

During the year, the loans granted to the company from local banks above-mentioned were rescheduled
to be paid in 6 semi-annual instalments starting from 18/2/2021 and ending on 18/8/2023.

The Banks-credit facilities amounting to L.E. 1 594 794 K on 31/12/2020 is represented in the amount
used from the facilities granted by the local banks in the Egyptian pound against several guarantees, the
most significant of which is a pledge on the inventory, and joint guarantee from Al-Ezz El-Dekheila
Steel Alexandria, assignment of all export proceeds to the banks and depositing all local sales revenues
at banks, as well as concluding insurance policy covering theft and fire of inventory in favour of the
banks, as well keeping some financial ratios and indicators, during the facility period based on an
interest rate related to Corridor rate declared by the Central Bank of Egypt in addition to a commission
on the highest debit balance.

During the year, the above-mentioned credit facilities were rescheduled to be paid in 24 unequal

quarterly installments according to specific percentages of the facility's balance starting from 31/3/2021
and ending on 31/12/2026.

9.
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Transiation from Arabic
Ezz Steel Company

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

Al Ezz Rolling Mills (Subsidiary)

An approval has been made on December 10, 2020 to restructure debts by the banks participating in the
long-term loan granted to the company for the purpose of establishing the reduced iron project, the
restructuring includes the existing debts arising from A, B,and C sections and the calculated returns until
December 31, 2020, with a maximum of 6.5 billion pounds and that the first instalment payment begins
on March 31, 2021, with modifying the interest rate to become 1.5% above the corridor price during the
first year from the date of activation, then applying 2% above the corridor price from the beginning of
the second year from the activation date until the final maturity date, (instead of 3.5% above the corridor
Lending to both section A, B and 1.75% above corridor lending to section C).

Until the date of issuance of the financial statements, the required conditions were not fulfilled so that
the banks participating in the long-term loans could start to activate the loan restructuring.

29. Finance lease
Future minimum lease Interest Present value of minimum
payments lease payments
31/12/2020 31{12/2019 31/12{2020 31/12/2019 31/12{2020 31/12/2019
LE (000) LE (000) LE (000) LE (000) LE (000 LE (000)
Due within one year 115 347 124 170 50781 80 290 64 566 43 880
Due within one year 115347 124 17¢ 50 781 80 290 64 566 43 880
Due from 1:2 years 115 347 124 480 42 026 70 675 73321 53 805
Due from 3:5 years 305926 354074 62 856 131 679 243 070 222 395
Due more than 5 52 631 101 028 3028 14 449 49 603 86 579
Long term liabilities 473 904 579 582 107 910 216 803 365 994 362 779
Total 589 251 703 752 158 691 297 093 430 560 406 659
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The company signed finance lease contracts (N0.4537 & 4538) with Corplease (Leasing Company) as at
June 27, 2016 to lease 2 floors in Nile Plaza Building for Eight years ending June 2024, the contracts
provide the right to the company to own those assets at a predetermined value at the end of the contract
year. On July 18, 2017, the company signed appendixes to these contracts to finance fixtures and finishes
for one of the leased floors and adding it to the leased asset and amending the lease contract, for Eight
years ending July 2025. On September 20, 2018, the company signed an appendix to these contracts to
increase the finance related to the leased asset in a form of revaluation of that asset and modify the
capital lease contracts, the repayment of the extra finance will be on 32 quarterly equally instalment
starts from December 20, 2018 till September 20, 2026, The cost of acquiring these two floors has been
included in the buildings item in the fixed assets of the company in accordance with the Egyptian
Accounting Standard No. (49) Leasing contracts.

On November 13, 2016, the company signed a finance lease contract (Contract no.4675) with Corplease
(Leasing Company) to finance the fixtures and finishes for the floors that have been leased in Nile Plaza
building for the period of Eight years ending November 2024,

During December 2018, the company signed contracts of sale and lease back (Contract no.1) with HD
company For Capital Lease for a piece of land of the lands owned by the company, and as per the
contracts with the mentioned company, the lease is for 7 years ending December 25, 2025, and the
contract gives the company the right to own the mentioned land at the end. of the contract’s period at
predetermined amount in the contract. It has been determined that the above-mentioned contracts are not
representing the sale of the plot of land. Accordingly, the plot of land has been re-recognized in the fixed

- assets and recognized a financial liability equal to the proceeds of transfer, that is in accordance with

Egyptian accounting standard (49) Lease Contracts.

During October 2020, an appendix has been concluded for the finance lease contracts mentioned above
and that was based on the decrees taken by the Central Bank of Egypt as of March 16, 2020 as some
installments were postponed for 6 months in addition to decreasing interest rates, where quarterly post-
paid checks has been issued till March 2027 after recalculating deferred interests based on the new
interest rates. As the payment period has been extended for 6 months for all contracts, accordingly the
balance of the interest related to the finance lease contracts has been decreased with an amount of

L.E 63 063 K, this transaction was eliminated when preparing the consolidated statement of cash flows.
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Ezz Steel Company

Translation from Arabic

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 {Continued)

30. LONG TERM LIABILITTES

Notes payable

Liability of the supplementary pension scheme
lending from others

Deferred revenue for grants

Unamortized portion of present value of the notes payable  (24-1) (595 303)

Present value for the long-term liabilities

Note  31/12/2020 31/12/2019
No.  LE(000) LE (000)
(4-1) 3531106 746 792
(26) 196 729 179 901
(30-1) 584 342 596 795
(30-2) 750 1567
4312927 1525 055
(310 062)
3717 624 1214 993

30.1 Al Ezz Flat Steel Company — (subsidiary company) borrowed USD 37 Million equivalent to
LE 584 Million from Daniele Company based on a contract dated September 27, 2013 and the loan
was used in full on October 1, 2013 to pay part of the loan due to the National Bank of Egypt
(NBE), Banque Misr and the foreign banks virtue of the guarantee of SACE, thereof the interests of
the loan are calculated based on variable interest rate related LIBOR.

30.2 Deferred revenues represent the amount of financial assistance granted by “Exon Mobil” to the
renovation of the car-catering and service station owned by Contra Steel (Subsidiary company) with
an amount of LE 3 820 K, deferred revenues within one year is amounted to LE 817 K (Note no.
25). and the consolidated income statement for the year ended December 31, 2020 was charged with
an amount of LE 897 K (against LE 887 K for the last year).

31. DEFERRED TAX
31.1 Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
LE (000) LE (000) LE (000) LE (000)

Fixed assets - (3 601 513) - (3 690 196)
Provisions and assets impairment 47 472 - 84 357 -
Finance lease liabilities 25 455 - 26 184 -
Tax losses * 2013633 - 1732964 -
Losses from foreign currency - -
exchange differences translation 34143 54632
Gains from foreign currency -
exchange differences translation (60 437) j (84413)

2120 703 (3 661 950) 1898 137 (3 774 609)
Net deferred tax (liability) (1 541 247) (1876 472)

* This item includes LE 1.436 Billion deferred tax assets recognized for the retained losses of Al Ezz Flat Steel
company and Al Ezz Rolling Mills Company (subsidiary companies) which amounted to LE 16.865 Billion.

31.2 Recognized deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement of income:

Net deferred tax

Less/ (Add):

Translation differences

Tax liabilities adjustments
Previously charged deferred tax
Peferred tax

31.3 Unrecognized deferred tax assets

Impairment loss on Receivables and debtors
Provisions
Tax losses

2020 2019
LE (000 LE (000)
(1 541 247) (1 876 472)

21267 114 823

. (40 124)

(1 876 472) (2 077 615)
313 958 126 444
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
LE (000) LE (000)

8 498 6 091

65 619 23 364

660 068 ]

734 185 29 455
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Translation from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the above items due to uncertainty of the
utilization of their benefits in the foreseeable future.

32. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

The company conducts commercial transactions with related parties. The following is the most important
of these transactions and related balances:

Transaction  Balance as of Balance as of
Volume 31/12/2020 31/12/2019
during the Restated
Nature of year Debit/(credit) Debit/{credit)
Transaction LE (000) LE (000) LE (000)
32.1 Items included in trade and notes receivable
- Al Ezz for Trading and Distributing Sales 1158 8 731 7 596
Building Materials (Affiliated company) 3731 7596
32.2 Items included in debtors and other debit balances
- Gulf of Suez Development Company _ 49 8
(Affiliated company)
- Al Ezz for Ceramics and Porcelain
(GEMMA) (affiliated company) Rent 2712 20 482 20210
20 531 20218
32.3 Items included in creditors and other credit balances
- Al Ezz Group Holding Company for Trade receivables
Industry & III:vestment (Shareholder) * settlement** 210000 (109164) (348 189)
- Al Ezz for Trading and Distributing (19) (19)
Building Materials (Affiliated company)
(109 183) (348 208)

* Restatement was made to some of the comparative figures as shown in note no. (40).
** This transaction was eliminated when preparing the separate statement of cash flows.

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
33.1 Contingent liabilities are represented in the amount of the letters of guarantee which are not covered that

were issued by the Company’s banks and subsidiaries in favour of others and the uncovered letters of
credit, detailed as follows:

31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Equivalent Equivalent
Letters of guarantee —EE—W ——Lgm
Egyptian Pound 18 253 65273
US Dollar 17 380 17717
Letters of credit
US Dollar 2268 841 1241 587
Euro 425 814 239 260

The letters of guarantee fully covered issued by the banks of the company and its subsidiaries in favour
of others on December 31, 2020 amounted to LE 135 K (against LE 1 085 K as of December 31, 2019
fully covered) (Note no.18).

33.2 The settlement agreement with one of the foreign suppliers (Note no.24-2) includes the supplier claims
Al Ezz Flat Steel (subsidiary company) for interest that will be calculated in agreement with the
company on the liability of supplying spare parts during previous years amounted to 15 483 K Euro
which is stated in the suppliers balance as of 31/12/2020 from the invoice due date until 31/10/2020, this

is in case of the company does not pay all the liabilities stated in the settlement agreement in the due
dates.

34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
- The capital commitments for Al Ezz Steel Company as of December 31, 2020 are represented
in the unexecuted portion of the commitments related to the purchase of machines and
equipment amounted to LE 730 K (against LE 5 544 K as of December 31, 2019)
The capital Commitments of El Ezz El Dekhaila as of December 31, 2020 amounted to LE 88 Million,
(whereas the amount as of December 31, 2019 is LE 91 Million).

25




N

]

{0 T R O 6 R R B

CoCoO0C-CO0ooOooodd

L.

[ L

[

L L

B

Transiation from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

35, TAX POSITION
35.1 Ezz Steel Company

35.1.1 Corporate tax

35.1.2

35.1.3

35.14

35.1.5

The Company enjoyed tax exemption according to article No. (24) from Law No. (59) for 1979
related to development of the new urban communities, the Company was granted a tax exemption
for a period of ten years which started on January 1, 1997 and ended on December 31, 2006.

The Tax Authority inspected the Company’s books until December 31, 2017 and there are no
outstanding dues or tax disputes.

The company submitted tax returns for the years 2018:2019 under Law No. 91 of 2005 on the due
legal dates, currently the tax inspection is being prepared for those years.

Sales tax and VAT

The Tax Authority inspected the Company’s books until year 2015 and the company paid the tax
differences in full.

Tax returns are submitted according to Value Added Tax law on the due legal dates.

Salary tax

The tax inspection was done till 2018 and there are no outstanding due.

Stamp tax

The Tax Authority inspected the Company’s books until year 2018 and all disputes were settled and
there are no outstanding dues.

Property tax

The tax assessment issued and paid up to 31/12/2020.

35.2 Al Ezz Rolling Mills Company

35.2.1

Corporate tax

The Company established its factory in the 10th of Ramadan City and according to the article
No. (24) of Law No. 59 for 1979 relating to the development of new urban communities, the
Company is tax exempted until December 31, 1999,

The Tax Authority inspected the Company’s books until 2017 and there are no any due amounts on
the company, the tax inspection has resulted in approved tax losses amounting to LE 73 862 K in
2016 and LE 1 321 347 K in 2017

The tax return was submitted on its legal date for years 2018 and 2019 according to the income tax

law No. 91 for 2005 and its amendments, the tax losses according to the submitted tax returns were
LE to 939 153 K in 2018 and LE 1 846 897 K in 2019.

Sales tax and VAT
The Tax Authority inspected the Company’s books until 2015 and the taxes due were paid.

The Tax Authority inspected the Company’s books for year 2016 till 2018 and the tax inspection
result is awaiting.

The monthly tax retums are summited on their legal due dates for year 2019 and 2020, the tax
inspection hasn’t been requested by the Tax authority yet.

Salary tax

The Company’s books have been inspected until year 2015 and the taxes due were paid and there
are no any outstanding dues on the company.

The Tax Authority inspected the Company’s books for year 2016 till 2018 and the tax inspection
result is awaiting.

The company deducts and submits its tax for year 2019 and 2020.

Stamp tax

The Tax Authority inspected the Company’s books until year 2018 and all disputes were settled and
there are no outstanding dues.

The tax inspection hasn’t been requested for year 2019 and 2020 yet.

Property tax
The tax assessment issued and paid up to 31/12/2020.
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Translation from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

35.3 Al Ezz El Dekheila for Steel — Alexandria Company
35.3.1 Corporate Tax

The company submits the tax returns pertaining to the corporate profits tax to the competent tax
inspectorate on annual basis on due legal dates, in addition it pays the due tax as per these tax
returns.

The General Authority For Investment and free zone “GAFI” has granted a tax exemption to the flat
steel project in implementation of the provisions of Law No. 162 / 2000 according to the certificate
issued by the General Authority for Investment on January 2, 2006 for a period of five years starting
from January 1, 2001 as the date of production inception was determined during the year 2000
based on the ruling issued by the Administrative Court on July 16, 2005.

Tax inspection was made for the company for the years 2000 / 2004, and an agreement was reached
in the Internal Committees after proving the tax exemption granted to the company with respect to
the flat steel project as per the certificate issued by GAFI on January 2, 2006 by virtue of which the
flat steel project was exempted based on the Administrative Court ruling issued on July 16, 2005.
The disputed issue (cancelling the state resources development duty on the movables tax base) was
referred to the Appeal Committee. And on June 12, 2010, the committee issued its resolution
responding positively to the motions of the company with respect to the cancellation of the financial
resources development duty on the exempted movable tax base while the other tax bases shall
remain exempted according to the resofution of the Internal Committee issued for the disputed years
2000 — 2004.

The due tax was paid in full and form No. (9) Paid attachment was obtained; accordingly, the
dispute was amicably settled and became final and decisive according to the provisions of law.

The company was notified of the tax — claim amounts for the years 2000/2004 according to forms
No. (3),(4), received from large taxpayers’ Center of the Tax Authority on February 17, 2011 with
an amount of LE 219 Million in additional to delay penalty. These forms represent the amount of
the tax imposed on the flat steel project which had previously enjoyed a tax exemption for the same
year. Despite the fact that the company’s tax and legal positions are stable due to the issuance of the
Appeal Committee resolution which supported the company, and which was approved by the
Authority and was not objected thereto, accordingly it became legally indisputable. Subsequently,
the Tax Authority cannot dispute with the company about these years once again. The company
filed a lawsuit to discharge from any indebtedness before the court in order to safeguard the
company’s rights.

The Tax Authority has held the accounts of the company kept at banks according to the tax
assessment made based on the fact that the profits of the flat steel projects for the years 2000/2004
are subjected to taxation. Al Ezz E] Dekheila for Steel - Alexandria (EZDK) Company reached an
agreement with the Tax Authority to cancel the administrative attachment imposed on the company
as a result of the above mentioned dispute against paying LE 50 Million during September and
October 2011, and settle the remaining tax claims amounting to LE 169 Million on 24 instalment
the first instalment amounting to LE 8 Million due in November 2011, while the remaining due
amount shall be paid on 23 monthly installments at LE 7 Million each, in addition to the delay
interest on the amount paid on instalments by amount of LE 35 Million. The paid amounts is LE
254 Million, including delay interest. The Company’s opinion that this procedure shall not change
the legal & tax position of the company as it reserves its right to reimburse what has been paid
immediately upon the issuance of a court ruling in favour of the company pertaining to lawsuit No.
405 of 2011. Which recorded with No. 963 year 2012 tax Alexandria. On February 28, 2018 the
court issued a ruling dismissing the case. The company appealed against it by appeal No. 268 of 74
J, and the session was postponed to June 5, 2021 for submitting documents.

The company’s tax inspection was made for years 2005/2006 and the company was notified of form
No. (19) — taxes on February 21, 2011. The tax differences amounted to LE 95 Million in addition
to delay interests, and the company appealed against these forms on the legal due dates, as the year
2005 represent the 5™ year of the flat steel project which is applicable to the above mentioned
exemption which is legally immune, the dispute for those years was referred to the Appeal
Committee. The company filed the lawsuit No. 245 - Alexandria Court for the purpose of plea to the
nullification of the Appeal Committee’s decision issued on December 14, 2011,The Primary Court
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Translation from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

Of Alexandria issued its ruling with lack of jurisdiction and transferred the case to Alexandria’s
Administrative Court and it was filed in No.(1698) for the year 72 J which directed to

commissioners committee which in turn assigned an expert to report, and it was assigned to another
court and its session date hasn’t been set yet.

The Tax Authority demanded that the company pays an amount of LE 120.6 Million as a delay
penalty based on the article No. 111 of the Law No. 91/2005, the company appealed on that demand
by filing a warrant for the chief of the Tax Authority and his legal advisor, the company paid all
these tax additional taxes in addition to delay penalty during the period from June till October 2014
with reserving that the company recovers all the amounts that were paid if a judicial ruling is issued
in its favour.

The company ensures the validity of its position and the strength of its defence since that the
litigation for the year 2005/2006 is about the continuance of the tax exemption that was decided and
secured by law for the years 2000/2004 as it’s the same subject and it was reviewed before court so
the tax exemption cannot be divided. The company pointed that in paying any amounts under the
account of taxes considering that these procedures will not harm its legal and tax positions and its
right in recovering all the amounts that was previously paid once a judicial ruling is issued in the
company's favor. The Company filed a Lawsuit No. 269 for the year 69 J Administrative Justice
Alexandria regarding the return of delay, it was rejected on March 31,2018 Session as result the
company appealed on the judgment before of the supreme Administrative Court by the appeal No.
(64240) for the year 64 J and no session is set yet.

The company’s tax inspection was made for years 2007/2008 and the company was notified of form
No. (19) ~ taxes on August 23, 2012, The tax differences amounted to LE 15 Million in addition to
LE 9.9 Million represented article No. (56) Tax difference and the company has appealed against
this form in the legal due dates as a result an internal committee has been held and it approved a
decision of an amount LE 8.8 Million as an entitled tax for these years with tax savings amounted
LE 16.2 Million. The internal committee has been notified with that and the dispute has been
conciliated.

The company’s tax inspection was made for years 2009/2010 and the company has been notified
with form No. (19) tax, the tax differences amounted to LE 105 Million, the company has appealed
on this form in the legal dates, and the dispute was transferred to Internal Committee, the committee
approved most of the differences except LE 17 Million that was transferred to appeal committee
that did not set an appeal session till now, the company paid LE 15 Million as part of the inspection
difference and the appeal committee has issued a decision of not approving the donations as it is
considered to a normal persons and a law suit no.(1138) of 73 J has been filed appealing on the
committee decision and session was set at May 24, 2021,

The tax authority inspected the years 2011/2013 and the company has been notified with tax form
No. (19), the tax differences amounted to LE 163 Million, the company appealed on this form in the
legal date, and the dispute was referred to internal committee, the committee approved an amount of
LE 6 Million.

The final settlement is made with the tax authority (rather than the previously mentioned current
lawsuits) for years from 2007 till 2013 to get advantage of the benefits of Law No. 174 of year 2018
about exemption from delay penalties.

The tax inspection for years from 2014 till 2017 has made, and the company was notified with tax
form No. (19), the tax differences amounted to LE 21 Million and it was fully covered and paid.

Tax inspection is not performed yet for the years 2018/2019.

Salary Tax

The company pays the tax on the legal due dates and submits the tax reconciliations according to
the provisions of law.

The tax inspection for the years 2004/2008 was completed and the company was notified with
accrued tax of LE 605 K which have been paid in full.

The tax inspection of the company for the years 2009/2012 was completed and ended all disputes
with the Internal Committes and the payment of the tax owed in full and the amount of LE 7.3
Million,
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Translation from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

- The tax inspection for the years 2013/2016 was completed and the company was notified by form
no. 37 salaries with accrued tax of LE 887 K which have been paid in full,

- Tax inspection for the years 2017 till 2019 has been made but not notified yet.

35.3.3 Sales Tax and VAT
- The company submits its monthly tax returns regularly on the specified legal due dates.

-  Tax inspection was made for the company with respect to the general sales tax till April 30, 2009
and the Inspectorate of large taxpayers has notified the Company of form No. (15) - taxes, a matter
which made the inspectorate claims for the tax differences with an amount of LE 40.7 Million.
However, grievance was made to this form and the differences stated therein, as these differences
represented the refusal of the Tax Authority to allow the company to deduct the tax imposed on the
capital commodities pursuant to Law No. 9/2005 and the ministerial decrees No. 295 and 296 of
year 2005 which grant the company the right to deduct the sales tax paid with respect to the capital
commodities, a matter which made the company file lawsuit No. 988 of year 2011 — Civil Circuit
and recorded with no. (10229) for the year 68 J Alexandria administrative court against the Tax
Authority claiming for its right to deduct the tax which was previously paid with respect to the
capital commodities. The company has previously settled these differences in order to avoid the
penalties in case a legal ruling is issued to the detriment of the company and the case is postponed
to April 28, 2021 session for documents.

- The tax examination was performed for the years starting from May 1,2009 till December 31, 2010,
the company was notified with the form no.(15), the tax differences was amounted to LE 77.3
Million and the company appealed on it and it was presented to the reconciliation committee off tax
center for major financiers, the points of dispute has been presented to the head of the tax authority
who agreed in deducting the previous payments which the company paid which amounted to LE 70
Million to limit the dispute to the amount of LE 7 Million and the dispute was presented on
grievances committee which referred it to the judiciary. The company filed a lawsuit no. 334 for
year 2013 total taxes before it was referred to the administrative court which is registered with no.
25999 for the year 67 J and at the session that was held on February 26, 2020. The court has
decided to refer the case to the state authority to prepare an opinion report. Therefore, the company
paid an amount of LE 4.5 Million and the rest which is amounted to LE 2.5 Million represents the
value of sales tax on the loaned billet which was recovered, and the lawsuit was set for
consideration at December 9, 2020, and joined lawsuit No. 36522, and it has been postponed to
April 28, 2021 for submitting report.

- Tax inspection was made for the period starting from January 1, 2011 till December 31, 2011. And
the company was notified of form No. (15). The tax differences amounted to LE 1.5 Million fully
paid.

- Tax inspection for the year 2012 were performed and the company was notified with form No. (15)
with an amount of LE 18.9 Million and the company appealed and the dispute is before the
complaints committee, the company requested to represent the dispute before the formed committee
to settle the tax disputes related to applying the Law No. (79) for the year 2016 and the company's
defence and supported documents are currently being presented, and afier legal deliberations, the
committee agreed to authorize the approval of soft coal discount by LE 12.1 Million with due tax by
LE 6.8 Million to lime and coarse coal, and the tax is non-deductible and it was fully paid.

- The tax authority notified the company with an additional tax amounted LE 7 Million from the date
of wrong admission instead of the committee decision date and filing a lawsuit No. 8967 for the
year 72 J Alexandria Administrative Judiciary and on October 23, 2019 a session set by the state
Administrative court issued a ruling dismissing the case and the company appealed on the
judgement appeal no. (19934) for the year 66 J in front of Administrative court and no session is
set yet.

- Tax inspection for the year 2013 were performed and the company was notified with form No. (15)
with differences which are amounted to LE 23.4 Million and the Company appealed on it, and the
dispute was before the appeal committee then the conflict was presented to the tax dispute
settlement committee. After legal deliberations and submission of documents, the committee agreed
to due sales tax by LE 6.5 Million and it was fully paid and the cancellation of LE 17 Million with
the additional tax using the issuance date by mistake not the committee’s date and a lawsuit has
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Translation from Arabic
Ezz Steel Company

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

been filed No.15083 for the year 72 J Alexandria Administrative Judiciary and on December 25,
2019 session for dismissing the case and the company appealed on the judgement in front of the
Administrative judiciary appeal No.(35760) for the year 66 J Administrative court and no session is
sef yet for the appeal. :

- The company was inspected for years from 2014 / 2015 and the company was notified with tax
form No. (15) with tax differences amounted to LE 35 Million, an appeal was made and the dispute
was referred to the Internal Committee, which agreed to cancel the sales tax of LE 24 Million and
the difference of LE 11 Million and was paid in full.

- The company's tax examination for the years 2016/2019 has not been completed to date.

35.3.4 Sales Tax on imports of iron oxide ore

- The Egyptian Customs Authority claimed the amount of LE 2 Billion that represents the value of
sales tax on imported iron oxide ore and the claim was made based on retroactive for the period
from the first of January 2008 till December 31, 2012, The company has submitted a memo to the
Minister of Finance to the effect that iron oxide ore imports should not be subject to taxation as
philosophy of the law of sales tax made the industrial product an intermediate link in tax collection,
where the tax previously paid is deducted from tax collected when selling the product and whereas
the company during previous periods was remitting supplying everything that has been collected
upon selling the product, without any deduction and the company has no will when customs release
was in place on this product.

Hence, the company should not be charged by any amounts because it was not a reason for non-
collection of tax nor in how the release of this raw material. The company's management and its tax
advisor are of the opinion that the Customs has no right in the amounts claimed from the company
because the company is applying the core of the law, in addition, the company is an intermediate
link with respect to tax collection and remitting it to the Tax Authority on legal due dates and there
are no grounds to claim tax differences.

- Although, the company filed Lawsuit No. 563 for the year 2013 Commercial Total Alexandria
which recorded by No. 14721 for the year 69 J Alexandria Administrative Judgment and No.9160
for year 68 J to clearance the company from the required tax dispute, Which issued a decision to
annulment the company's claim of LE 2 Billion value of sales tax on the consignments released
from January 1, 2008 until December 31, 2012 with the consequent effects of the company's
acquittal of the amount of the claim, on June 25, 2018 a session set by the state Administrative
court ruled to assign an expert in the lawsuit The Committee of Experts has deposited its report, and
left the matter to the court, as it related to a legal issue. And on the session held on March 24, 2021
the court decided to leave the original two lawsuits, and in the secondary lawsuit, it was accepted in
form and rejected in substance.

35.3.5 Sales Tax for the usufruct amounts claimed by Alexandria Port Authority

- The claim of usufruct sales tax due to Alexandria Port Authority was settled and an agreement was
reached, and the company payed the principal tax amounting to LE 104 Million for the period from
2003 until 2012 and additional tax amounting to LE 127 Million by means of post-dated cheques
ended on December 31, 2013 and a letter was obtained from Counter Tax Evasion Authority. The
company filed Lawsuit No. 1609 for year 2014 Alexandria total to request from both Alexandria
Port Authority restricted with No. 36522 of year 69J and the Minister of Finance to refund amount
of LE 249.5 Million that represents the value of what the tax authority received under the name of
sales tax against the license for the use of equipment and pier of mining materials during the period
from February 2003 till December 2013 and The Administrative Court of Alexandria has appointed
an expert in the case to examine the company's requests and the expert proceeds his errand and the
report hasn’t been submitted yet and the lawsuit was postponed to April 21, 2021 for reviewing.

- Although the company filed Lawsuit No. 8971 for year 72J - Administrative Court Alexandria — to
refund L.E 34 711 K value of what has been collected for sales tax on license for period from
January 2014 to September 2016, the lawsuit was postponed to April 21, 2021 for re-pleading.

35.3.6 Stamp Tax
- The Tax Authority inspected the Company’s books for the period started from the 1% of January,
2005 until December 31, 2013 and the company has paid any tax differences for this years.
- The tax inspection for the years 2014/2016 has been made and the company was notified with
form (No. 19), it was appealed for and referred to the Internal Committee
- Tax inspection is not performed yet for the years 2017 to 2019.
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Translation from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company ‘
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

35.3.7 Real Estate Tax

35.3.8

35.3.9

The real estate tax was paid up to June 30, 2013 in accordance with the provisions of Law No. 56 of
1954.

The Real Estate Tax Authority notified the Company of form (3) of the rental value and annual real
estate tax as of June 30, 2014, which amounted to LE 8.9 Million. These estimates were challenged
on Form (4) on the legal date on May 4, 2016. The company notified with the decision of appeal
committee no. 371/372 for the year 2015 stating that a real estate tax of LE 17 Million has been
approved annually. The tax due for the period from July 1, 2013 to September 30, 2019, according
to the decision of the appeal committee, is 102 Million Egyptian pounds. In front of the
Administrative Court No. 26036 for the year 70 J and the session will be on September 2, 2020 for
submitting documents and the company has also applied to the Tax Dispute Committee and after
submitting supporting documents of its point of view, therefore the committee decided to decrease
the annual assessment from LE 17 Million to LE 10.7 Million and the Minister of Finance approved
the committee’s decree, and the settlement was made with Agami’s Committee to prove our credit
balance amounting to LE 31.13 Million on 31/12/2020

The Real Estate Tax Authority - the Custom — claimed the company a tax amounted to L.E 4.5
Million for the real estate used inside El Dekheila port , the lawsuit was filed No. 14629 for year
71] with no tax due and paid L.E 6.7 Million as payments until issuance of final judgment, and on
June 17, 2020 the Administrative Court Alex declined the lawsuit , and the appeal is currently in
process in front Supreme Administrative Court .

Service Charges related to imported equipment for production use

The company filed a lawsuit to reimburse the service charges pertaining to the equipment imported
to be used in production which were paid to the Customs Authority under No. (2112) for year 2002
regarding the shipments represented in the equipment and spare parts in implementation of the
provision of Law No. 66 / 1963, article No. (111} which stipulated the unconstitutionality thereof,
since the Customs Authority has not rendered any services to the company with respect to the
shipments incoming to the company from abroad. The amounts claimed by the company from the
Customs Authority amounted to LE 126 Million.

On February 27, 2011, a ruling was issued by Alexandria Civil Court (Civil Circuit) with respect to
Lawsuit No. (2112), obligating the two defendants to pay the plaintiff company an amount of LE
103.9 Million along with the legal interest 4% from the date of the legal claim until the date of the
actual settlement.

The ruling was appealed against and a ruling was issued on November 6, 2012 in favour of the
company to the effect of conforming the ruling at first degree preventing from exchange, currently
by the legal affairs department follows up the eexecution of the judgment process , Ministry of
Finance has been appealed against the ruling filed the appeal No.77 for the year 83 J, On July 7 ,
2019 the court of cassation issued a ruling by not to accept the appeal and then the ruling become
final ,

Withholding Tax

A committee from the Central Administration in Cairo and Burj Al Arab inspected the company for
the discount and addition tax for the years 2011 through 2015, and the examination resulted in a tax
benefit of LE 1.3 Million, which was paid in full.

The tax Authority inspected the company for years from 2016 / 2018 and the company was notified
about differences from the tax inspection amounting to LE 1 Million and the amount was paid in
full

35.4 Al Ezz Flat Steel Company

354.1

Corporate tax

In the light of issuing Law No. 114 of 2008 on May 5, 2008, the private free zones license was
being cancelled and the company become subject to corporate tax from that date.

The Tax Authority inspected the Company’s book from the commencement of activity until
31/12/2014 and resulted in tax losses.

The company submitted the tax return in the legal dates for 2015 till 2019 and the inspection is
prepared for these years.
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Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

35.4.2 Salary Tax

-  The tax inspection was made and there are no tax claims on the company since the beginning of the
business till 2016.

- The company deducts and submits the tax on the legal due dates for year 2017 till 2019 and the tax
inspection has been made and the result is awaiting.
The company deducts and submits the tax on the legal due dates for year 2020

35.4.3 Sales tax and VAT

- The Tax Authority inspected the Company’s books until 31/12/2018, tax assessment issued and
paid up to legal date and there are no dues.

- The company submits the monthly tax return on the legal due dates and the inspection for year 2019
and 2020 hasn’t been requested by the tax authority yet.

35.4.4 Stamp tax

- Tax inspection was issued and made from 2008 until 2018 and there are no claims on the Company.
- The company submitted the tax returns on the legal due dates for year 2019 and 2020 and the tax
inspection hasn’t been requested by the tax authority yet.

35.4.5 Real Estate Tax

36.
36.1

36.2

36.3

- The tax assessment issued and péid up to 31/12/2020.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial instruments

The Company's financial instruments are represented in cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
debtors, investments, trade payables, notes payable, creditors, loans and bank credit facilities, and
finance lease liabilities, book value of these financial instruments does not differ significantly from its
fair value at the financial position date.

Interest rate risk

The interest risk is represented in the interest rates changes on the company’s debts, represented in Joans
(before deducting issuance cost) and credit facilities, finance lease liabilities and some rescheduled
suppliers liabilities which amounted to LE 37 585 797 K as of December 31, 2020 (LE 32 630 804 as of
December 31, 2019). Financing interest and expenses related to these balances amounted to
LE 3 899 231 K during the year (LE 4 881 953 K during the comparative year). Restricted time-deposits
and current accounts amounted to LE 372 643 K as of December 31, 2020 (LE 140 567 K as of
December 31, 2019), interest income related to these time-deposits and current accounts amounted to
LE 94 847 K during the current year (LE 117 346 K during the comparative year). The company works
on getting the best terms available in the market regarding the credit facilities to mitigate this risk, also
the company reviews the prevailing interest rates in the market periodically which reduces the interest
rate risk.

Credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk exposure, The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the financial position date is:

31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Note Restated

No. LE (000) LE (000)

Long term lending to others (14) 45 3380 51 (024
Trade and notes receivables (17 2875782 1 859 937
Debtors and other debit balances* (18) 4 404 704 3489721
Suppliers - advance payments 331 373 579192
Cash and cash equivalents 20) 2158 981 1835290

* Restatement was made to some of the comparative figures as shown in note no. (40).

36.4 Foreign currency risk

The foreign currency risk represents the risk of fluctuation in exchange rates which in turn affects the
Company’s cash inflows and outflows in foreign currency as well as the value of its foreign currencies
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Translation from Arabic

monetary assets and liabilities. The Company has foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities

equivalent to LE 1 277 765 K and LE 8 941 099 K respectively,
The Company’s net exposures in foreign currencies at the financial position date are as follows:

Foreign Currency (Deficit)/Surplus

Thousands
US Dollars (412 261)
Euro (58 795)
Swiss Frank 13
Sterling Pound (211)
Japanese Yen (58 508)
AED 3

As shown in (Note no. 41-1) “Foreign currency translation”, the balances of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies shown above were valued using the prevailing exchange
rate of the banks that the Company deals with at the financial position date.

Foreign currencies rates as of the financial position date are as follows:

Closing rates as of: Average rates during
the year ended:
31/12/2020 31/12/2019 31/12/2020 31/12/2019
US Dollars 15.77 16.09 15.9220 16.882
Euro 19.4113 18.0836 18.3411 19.0098
Swiss Frank 17.9184 16.6788 17.0573 17.192
Sterling Pound 18.5828 21.2887 19.9430 21.685
AED 4.2935 4.3807 4,3349 4.59716
THE LITIGATION STATUS

37.1 Workers Lawsuits Regarding Profits Differences:
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Some workers whose services for the company came to an end filed (73) lawsuits claiming the
calculation of the profits differences for years from 2004 till 2010 based on the gross salary at a
percentage of 10% of the profits and they laid down the grounds of their lawsuits based on the
stipulation of the first article of labor Law No. (12) For the year 2003 and the stipulation of article
No. (41) of the Joint-Stock Companies Law No. 159 of 1981.

The rulings were issued in regard to (71) lawsuits ranging between refusal and dropping as the
company complied with the core of the law when calculating the employees’ share in profits
according to the authority vested thereto by virtue of the stipulation of article No. (12) of the Arab
and Foreign Capital Investment Law No. (43)/1974 and article No. (52) of the company’s Articles
of Association issued by virfue of Decree No. (90)/1981 which authorize the Board of Directors and

the General Assembly of the company to determine the percentage, the criterion and the manner of
the profits appropriation.

However, the Court of Appeal confirmed the issued rulings of refusal or dropping in (14) lawsuits,
and there are (55) lawsuits that have not been appealed against and the rulings thereof acquired the
opposability of res judicata due to the lapse of the date of appeal thereof, while the remaining two
lawsuits were cancelled, not renewed and were considered legally as there were not existed.

Some workers of Al Ezz Dekheila Steel Company Alexandria filed 6 lawsuits concerning the
financial differences of the social allowances for the years from 1996 until 2010, in which the
company insisted on adhering to the agreement that was concluded between the company and the
workers on July 7, 2011 which resulted in the fact that the company paid the said financial
differences of the social allowances and the court lapsed the litigation and there is still on litigation
remaining under deliberation.

The company’s management and its legal advisor are of the opinion that the company complied
with the proper core of law in regard to the profit’s appropriation for the employees thereof

according to the company’s articles of association without prejudice to the rights of any of the
employees thereof.
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Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

37.2 Lawsuits before Court Concerning the Trespass on The Company’s lands:

- Some individuals and companies trespassed a part of the company’s lands with an area of
approximately 17 feddans purchased from the State Property Protection Authority whose total area
is approximately 108 feddans that were allocated to the company and received thereby according to
the receipt report dated December 13, 1998 issued by virtue of Decree No. (80) of 1993 of
Alexandria Governor, and the company paid the price of such land in full according to the
agreement concluded between the company and the State Property Protection Authority on June 19,
2008. The trespass was erased at September 12, 2017 and the company received the land in
accordance with the delivery report from the state property protection authority and ElAgami
district after erasing trespass from main road and legal actions are in process to finalize the land
register.

- As stated on the contract which was dated on February 3, 1999 between the company as the buyer
and Dr. Waheed Rafaat as a seller, the Company purchased a plot of land with total area of
approximately 29 feddans on the Ezbat Elbarbary next to Om Zeghio — Dekhaila with a total value
of L.E 14 007 K ,The company paid L.E 9 404 K and the remaining represents 4 603 k will be paid
when the seller obtains the property after a final judgment confirmation.

The seller filed the lawsuit No. 1646 for the year of 1999 in Alexandria civil court, and the court
refused it. The appeal No. 6511 of 59 J was made before the Alexandria Court of Appeals, and on
April 9, 2019 a session, was judged by confirming the ownership of the land plot to the seller,the
state appealed on the jurisdiction cassation No. 12152 for the year 89 J, and no decision nor session
has been determined until this date.

On October 25, 2019 the seller filed the lawsuit No. 1631 for the year of 2019 in Alexandria civil
court, For declining the right of the company in requesting to transfer the ownership of the land and
to keep It under his authority and his right to dispose of it, and dismiss effect of the initial contract
between him and the company , and to evacuate of the company from the land , On January 23,
2020 the lawsuit was refused and the appeal No. 1610/1921 for the year 76 J was made and set
session on November 25, 2020 for notes, and the law suit was refused in December 30, 2020
session.

According to the opinion of the company’s legal advisor, the seller has an eternal obligation in
accordance with the provision of Article 439 of the Civil Law not to be exposed to the company as a
buyer in the initial contract, whether in the use of the land or the transfer of its ownership to it,
because the seller is legally obligated to guarantee, that is, the transfer of the right of ownership by
registration to the buyer, This guarantee does not lapse by statute of limitations. It is an obligation
expressed, because the legal rule is that the one who must guarantee it has refrained from exposure,
and that the legal position of the company is normal in all legal terms.

38. OTHER TOPICS

38.1 EZDK Steel UK limited Company (Subsidiary company)

An agreement was made with EZDK Steel UK LTD in 2005 to represents the Ezz Dekheila Steel
Company - Alexandria abroad without having the right to contract in its name, whether in the
purchase or sale operations, this company also provides legal, marketing and financial services to
Al Ezz Dekheila Steel - Alexandria in exchange for 50% of all expenses of that company plus 5%.

In the previous years, Al-Ezz Dekheila Steel Company — Alexandria implemented that agreement
by paying one bill amounting to Sterling Pounds 148 K, the value of its share in the expenses of
that company for the first haif of 2011.

On July 11, 2011, a ruling was issued by the judicial bodies in the United Kingdom to subject
EZDK Steel UK LTD, a subsidiary company, to be under the managerial control of BDO LLP
England Institute in the United Kingdom due to its insolvency and based on the fact that the
shareholders reached an agreement in regard to the procedures necessary to be taken to the effect of
the company’s liquidation.
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Ezz Steel Company
Noies to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

38.2

However, the company still under the managerial control of that Institute till the consolidated
financial statements date (the investment cost reached the amount of LE 510 with a participation
percentage of 50% of the company’s capital).

The company has contracted with a legal liquidator in the United Kingdom to complete the
liquidation procedures, provided that the liquidator’s fees are paid equally with Al-Ezz Group
Holding Company for Industry & Investment.

Alexandria Port Authority

On June 19, 2011, Alexandria Port Authority issued an administrative attachment order with respect
to the accounts of Al Ezz El Dekheila for Steel - Alexandria (EZDK) kept at some banks, where the
value of the attachment order amounted to LE 181.2 Million (without specific particulars regarding
the breakdown of this amount), and the procedures of the said attachment came into force on
October 26, 2011. The amounts kept at the banks under attachment reached the amount of LE 66
Million as the amount in return for the claims made by the Authority pertaining to the sales tax and
delay interest imposed on the materials stevedoring category (the core of a legal dispute that has not
been settled yet), and being the subject matter of Lawsuit No. 797 of 2010 filed by Alexandria Port
Authority against sales Tax Authority and Al Ezz El Dekheila for Steel - Alexandria (EZDK) in
order to guarantee receiving the amounts pertaining to the judgments that might be issued against
Alexandria Port Authority with respect to the sales tax assessment as the said ruling of that lawsuit
was scheduled on September 17, 2012, And a judgment was issued to the effect of dismissing the
case and the company an appeal against the lawsuit No. 747 for 2012, and the session is postponed
to June 24, 2013. And adjournment of the session has taken place until the constitutional action
No.54 for the judicial year, No.35 the lawsuit deliberation was settled and the report has not been
filled yet.

The Sales Tax Authority claimed the company to pay the principal tax amounting to LE 104 Million
in addition to tax amounting to LE 127.5 Million till June 28, 2012 in return for usufiuct of the
equipment of mining ores dock related to the handling of ores in El Dekheila Port.

On October 3, 2012, the company paid the principal tax amounting to LE 104 Million along with its
right to maintain a reservation on the settlement until the Sales Tax Authority ceases all the actions
taken against Alexandria Port Authority which in its turn shall cease all the actions taken against the
company including the lift of attachment on the company’s balances at the various banks. The sales
tax authority is of the opinion the necessity of payment the additional tax in order to cease the
mentioned procedures.

The company’s management paid an amount of LE 127.5 Million under the account of the
additional tax claimed by virtue of post-dated checks starting from December 31, 2012 for one year.
Accordingly, Alexandria Port Authority notified the banks to lift the administrative attachment
imposed on the Company’s balances at the banks in favour of the Port Authority.

Based on the opinion of its tax advisor, the company’s management is of the opinion that
Alexandria port Authority is not entitled to claim the Company to pay sales tax in retum for
usufruct of the equipment of mining ores dock related to the handling of ores in El — Dekheila Port,
the occupation of the yards allocated for this purpose and carrying out the works of operation and
maintenance necessary for such equipment as its not subjected for sales tax, the payment of such
amount or amounts by the company to Alexandria Port Authority, either at the present time or in the
future, as a tax in refurn for the same service, does not mean its approval of subjecting the service to
taxation along with the continuity of legal proceedings taken by the company to confirm the fact
that such service is not subjected to sales tax.

The company filled lawsuit No.1609 for year 2014 civil which numbered 36522 for year 69 J
Alexandria Administrative Judiciary against both of the Port Authority and the Tax Authority
requesting refund of what was collected from company under the name of sales tax for the period
beginning from February 15, 2003 till December 31, 2013 in an amount of L.E 249.525 Million ,
On November 28, 2018 session the court appointed an expert in the lawsuit and for now the lawsuit
was postponed until April 21, 2021 for reviewing. The company also filed a lawsuit No. 8971 for
the year 72 BC Administrative Judiciary - Alexandria requesting a refund of L.E 34 711 K Egyptian
pounds, the value of what was collected under the name of sales tax on the license fee for the period
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Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

from January 2014 until September 2016, the end of the general sales tax law. Based on the fact that
the license fee for usufruct is not subject to the general tax on sales, and the lawsuit was referred to
the State Commissioners Authority that deposited an opinion report in which /it ended with the
assignment of an expert in the case to examine the company’s requests, the expert proceeded and
deposited a report in which he concluded that the amounts paid by the company were counted, and
the lawsuit was postponed to the session of April 21, 2021 for re-pleading.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

During the first quarter of year 2020 most of the world countries, including Egypt, were exposed to the
novel coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic which its effect still exists, and caused disturbances in the
majority of commercial and economic activities in general. So, it is possible to have a material impact on
the elements of assets, liabilities and its recoverable value thereof, and the results of operations in the
group’s consolidated financial statements for the current year and the subsequent periods, in addition to
the potential impact on the provision of raw materials, supplies necessary for production and operations,
the demand on the group’s products, and the available liquidity. Currently, the group is assessing and
determining the size of this impact on its current consolidated financial statements, the management
doesn’t expect in the meantime, based on the latest available information, any significant impact on the
current consolidated financial statements and its going concern, due to instability and uncertainty as a
result of the current events, the magnitude of that event depends mainly on the expected time frame, in
which these events and their consequences, are expected to be ended, which is difficult to determine in
the meantime.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

According to the settlement and conciliation agreement dated 28/2/2018 with the National Committee
for the Recovery of Assets , the conciliation took place according to the law no. 28 for 2015 in the
lawsuit No. 11743 for the year 2011 (Agouza Criminal) known as (Dekheila lawsuit) , and the lawsuit
No. 1372 for the year 2011“Qasr Al-Nile Criminal” known as "Iron Licenses" and other court cases
related to money laundry and illegal gains obtained form the Two basic cases , an amount of
L.E 1.7 Billion was paid as a consideration of conciliation in this cases for unlawfully benefits and
profits, based on the legal consultations, the opinion of the company's independent legal advisor and the
approval of Ordinary General Assembly of the company which has been held on 22/8/2020 the company
was charged the conciliation amount paid to the National Committee for the Recovery of Assets
amounted to L.E 1.7 Billion considering that it is the beneficiary company from these benefits and
profits, The amount was settled by adding it to the retained losses and adding the same amount to the
current account of Al Ezz Group Holding Company For Industry and Investment (Sharcholder)
retroactively as of the date of the settlement and conciliation agreement mentioned above, restatement of
the comparative figures in the consolidated financial statements according to this.

Restatement was made to comparative figures related to recognizing accrued interests due to a foreign
supplier on his credit balance due to him from Al Ezz Flat Steel Company and Al Ezz Rolling Mills
Company (subsidiary companies).

Some comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current classification of the
consolidated financial statements.

The impact of the restatement and reclassification on the consolidated financial statements is as follows:

First: Impact on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position:

Description 31/12/2019 31/12/2019
As previously  Restatement Reclassification Restated
Debit/(Credit)  Debit/(Credit) Debit/(Credit) Debit/(Credit)
LE (000) LE (000) LE (000) LE (000)
Debtors and other debit balances 4 841 532 (1351 811) - 3489721
Retained losses 12 103 846 1 810237 - 13914 083
Non-controlling interest (1720 904) 91 710 - (1 629 194)
Trade and notes payable (5 865 470) (201 947) (128 820) (6 196 237)
Creditors and other credit balances (2 322 846) (348 189) 276 448 (2 394 587)
Credit facilities and Loan installments (19 964 635) - (147 628) (20 112 263)
-36-
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Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 {Continued)

Second: Impact on the Consolidated Statement of income:

Description 2019 2019
As previously  Restatement Reclassification Restated
Debit/(Credit)  Debit/(Credit) Debit/(Credit)  Debit/(Credit)
LE (000) LE (000) LE (000) LE (000)
Finance costs 4 680 006 201 947 - 4 881 953
Basic and diluted loss per share for the (11.61) (0.20) -~ (11.81)
Third: Impact on the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows:
2019 2019
Description As previm_lsly Restatement  Reclassification Restated
LE (000) LE (000) LE (000) LE (000)
Net loss for the year before income tax (7 807 518) (201 947) - (8 009 465)
Finance and interest expenses 4 680 006 201 947 - 4 881 953
Change in trade receivables, debtors (6 158 163) 8 345 - (6 149 818)
Change in trade payables, creditors and 2438471 (8 345) (1324) 2 428 802
Net proceeds from the banks credit 6 440 267 - 1324 6 441 591

41. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently by the group’s companies during ail
presented periods in these consolidated financial statements.

41.1 Foreign currency translation

The group maintains its accounts in Egyptian Pound. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at foreign exchange rate prevailing at the date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the financial position date are translated at the foreign exchange rates
prevailing, at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rates at that date of the transaction. Foreign currency
differences arising on the translation are recognized in the consolidated statement of income at the
financial position date in consolidated statement of income.

The functional and presentation of the financial statements of Al Ezz Flat steel (subsidiary company) to
be in the Egyptian pound instead of the US dollar starting from the date 31/12/2020. This is due to the
fact that the Egyptian pound has become the currency in which most of the company’s sales are made as
well as the financing needed for operations this was done in line with amendment that was made to the
ownership structure of the company as explained in Note no.(1-3), and all the items of the financial

statements have been translated using the prevailing exchange rate of the Egyptian pound against the US
dollar on 31/12/2020.

41.2 Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation - except rolling rings - is charged to the consolidated statement of income on
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of assets. The management of the company regularly
reconsiders the remaining useful lives of the fixed assets in order to determine whether they match the
previously estimated useful lives and if there is a significant difference, the assets depreciation will be
calculated in accordance with the remaining estimated useful life,

Leased fixed assets (The assets that ownership of the assets will be transferred to the lessee by the end of
the lease contract) are recognized at cost in the beginning of lease contract, after the beginning of the
lease contract the value of the leased fixed assets is determined at cost less the accumulated depreciation
and the accumulated impairment loss and adjusted by any adjustments to the lease liability, the leased
fixed assets is depreciated using straight line method over the estimated useful life of assets which are
mentioned below.

During 2016, modified cost model was adopted by the group, which the cost and accumulated
depreciation for some categories of fixed assets (Machinery and equipment, Vehicles, Furniture and
office equipment, Tools and supplies) are modified using modification factors stated in annex (A) of
EAS No. (13). The increase of net fixed assets which are qualified to modification, were recognized in
other comprehensive income items and was presented as a separate item in equity under the name of
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Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

"modification surplus of fixed assets”. The realized portion of modification surplus of fixed assets is
transferred to retained earnings or losses in case of disposal or abandonment of the asset which qualified
for modification or usage (depreciation difference resulting from the adaption of the special accounting
treatment).

The estimated useful life for each type of assets is as follows:

Estimated useful life
Asset Xears
Buildings
—  Buildings 25-50
—  Other buildings 8
Machinery and equipment
—  Machinery and equipment 5-25
—~  Rolling rings (machinery and equipment) According to actual use (ERM 5-6)
Vehicles 2-5
Furniture and office equipment
—  Furniture and office equipment 3-10
—  Central air conditioning and fixtures 8
Tools and appliances 4-5
Improvements on leased buildings The lower of lease term or assets’ useful lives
Profits or losses resulting from fixed assets disposal are charged to the consolidated statement of
income.

41.3 Cost subsequent to acquisition
The replacement cost of an asset component is recognized in the asset cost after the elimination of the
cost of this component when such cost is incurred by the company and in case it is probable that future
economic benefits shall inflow to the group as a result of the replacement of this component
conditional on the ability to measure its cost with a high level of accuracy. However, the other costs are
to be recognized in the consolidated statement of income as an expense when incurred.

41.4 Projects under construction
Projects under construction are recognized initially at cost. Cost includes all expenditures directly
attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use. Projects under construction
are transferred to fixed assets at its cost when they are completed and are ready for their intended use.
41.5 Other assets
— Other assets are licenses cost which are capable of generating future economic benefits.

—  Other assets are stated at purchased cost including any expenses that are directly attributable to preparing
the asset for its intended use, net of accumulated amortization and impairment losses.

41.6 Investments in associates

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method and are recognized initially at cost.
The Group's investment includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment
losses, if any. The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of income, and expenses
of equity accounted investee, after adjustments to align accounting policies with those of the Group,
from the date that significant influence commences to the date that significant influence ceases, When
the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity accounted investee, the carrying amount is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an
obligation or has made payments on behalf of the associate.

In case of the excess in the cost of acquisition over the company share in net fair value of the assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities as well in associates on the date of acquisition, the goodwill is

recognized as a part of investment book value, thus it will be subjected to the impairment loss on the
investment.

41.7 Investments available-for-sale
Available-for-sale investments are initially measured at fair value and as of the consolidated financial
statements date, the change in the fair value whether gain or loss is recognized directly in equity, except
for impairment losses which are transferred to consolidated statement of profit or loss. When an
investment is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred to profit or loss.

~38.



11 7]

N [ I O A O R A R A R B B

0O

C O

[

L

_

Transiation from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

The fair value for consolidated available-for-sale investments is identified based on the quoted price of
the exchange market in an active market at the consolidated financial position date, except for
investments which are not quoted in a stock exchange in an active market, in this case they are measured
at cost net of impairment loss.

41.8 Investments in treasury bills
Investments in treasury bills are stated in the financial statements are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured by depreciated cost, the difference between acquiring cost and the realizable
value during the period is amortized from acquiring date to maturity date using actual interest rate.

419 Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the acquisition cost over the fair value of the identifiable assets
acquired at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is tested for impairment at consolidated financial position
date, If events or changes in circumstances indicate that the goodwill might be impaired, impairment loss
“If any” is charged to the consolidated statement of income for the year.

41.10 Inventory
Inventory is valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and
selling expenses. Cost is determined as follows:

- Raw materials: is valued at its cost up to bringing them to warehouses, and the outgoing is
evaluated using the first in first out method.

- Spare parts, materials, and supplies are valued at cost up to bringing them to warehouses, and the
outgoing is evaluated using the weighted average method.
- Work in process: according to the actual manufacturing cost which includes direct materials and

labor cost in addition to share of indirect manufacturing cost incurred until the last production stage
reached.

- Finished products: according to the actual manufacturing cost according to costs’ statements.

41.11 Trade and notes receivables and debtors
Trade and notes receivable and debtors are initially stated at their fair value and subsequently measured

by amortized cost using the effective interest rate and reduced by estimated impairment losses from its
value.

41.12 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows comprise cash balances, banks
current accounts, time deposits, market money fund bills and treasury bills which do not exceed three
months and banks overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management preparing are included as a component of cash equivalents, The consolidated statement of
cash flows is prepared and presented according to indirect method.

41.13 Trade and notes payable and creditors

Trade and notes payable and creditors are primary stated at fair value and subsequently measured by
amortized cost using the actual interest rate.

41.14 Impairment loss on assets
A. Financial assets

A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events
have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate. An impairment loss in respect of an available-for-sale
financial asset is calculated by reference to its current fair value.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The
remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk
characteristics.
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Transiation from Arabic
Ezz Steel Company

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

All impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any cumulative loss in respect of an available-
for-sale financial asset recognized previously in equity is transferred to profit or loss.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognized. For financial assets measured at amortized cost and available-
for-sale financial assets that are debt securities, the reversal is recognized in consolidated income
statement. For available-for-sale financial assets that are equity securities, the reversal is recognized
directly in equity.

B. Non-financial assets

4115

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impainment.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that
generates cash flows that are largely independent from other assets and groups. Impairment losses are
recognized in the consolidated statement of income,

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are. assessed at consolidated financial statements date
for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reviewed if
there has been a change in the estirates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss
had been recognized.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortized cost on an effective
interest basis with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognized in the
consolidated statement of income.

Borrowing cost of financing fixed assets are capitalized to finance qualified fixed assets during the
construction period till the asset is reachable for use from the economical view.

41.16 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a flow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the
effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. The provisions balances are reviewed on a going basis at the financial position
date to disclose the best estimate on the current period.

41.17 Share capital

Repurchase of share capital

Upon the repurchase of issued capital shares of the company (whether direct way or by using one of its
subsidiaries), it is recognized with the amount paid in return for the repurchase process which includes
all direct costs and all costs related to repurchasing, as a reduction in owners' equ1ty, and it shall be
classified as treasury stock deducted from the total owners' equity side.

41,18 Revenues
a) Sales revenues

Sales revenues are recognized when the risks and benefits of goods are transferred to the purchaser at
delivering the goods, The sales revenues are not recognized in case of non-assurance of the collection
of these revenues or inability to determine any related costs or any expected sales return or the
continues of the management relation with the sold product.

b) Dividends

Dividends income is recognized in the consolidated income statement on the date where the company
has the right to receive investees’ dividends occurred after the date of acquisition.
Interest income

Interest income is recognized in the profit or loss as it accrues using the effective interest rate method.
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Translation from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

41.19 lease contracts
Finance I.ease contracts
A leased asset is recognized in the company's assets, also recognize a liability that represents the present value
of the unpaid finance lease installments in the company’s liability.
Finance lease contracts (sell and lease back)
If the entity (the lessee) transfers the asset to the other entity (the lessor) and leased back the asset, the entity
must determine whether the asset is being accounted for sales transaction or not, in case of not being sales
transaction the lessee must continue to recognize the transferred asset and must recognize a financial liability
equal to the proceeds of the transfer.
Operating lease contracts
Leases are classified as operating leases. Payments in respect of operating leases are charged to statement of
income as expenses payments in on a straight-line basis over the lease term. (Net of value of any lease
discount incentive and rent-free periods).

41.20 Earnings per share
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

41.21 Income Tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the period comprises current income tax and deferred tax. Income tax
is recognized in the consolidated income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized
directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at consolidated financial position date.

Deferred tax is provided using the financial position liability method, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected
manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the consolidated financial position date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized during the upcoming periods.

41.22 Grants related to assets

Grants related to fixed assets are recognized as deferred income and are recognized as income in
accordance with the terms of the grant. Deferred income balance is presented in long-term liabilities
after deduction of deferred income due during the year, which is shown under current liabilities.

41.23 Employee benefits

The company contributes inside Egypt in Social Insurance under the Social Insurance Authority for the
benefits of its personnel in pursuance to the Social Insurance Authority law No. 79 of 1975 and its
amendments. These contributions recorded in the ‘salaries and wages’ accounts, in addition to end of
service benefits as shown in note no.(10}.

41.24 Financial risk management

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

*  Credit risk

*  Liquidity risk

*  Market risk
This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risks, and the Group management of
capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these consolidated financial statements.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group risk
management framework.

The Group risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group,
to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Group’s activities.
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Translation from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

The Group, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations.

41.24.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and
cause the other party to incur financial loss.

This risk is mainly resulting from the Group’s trade and other debtors.

41.24.1.1 Trade receivable & other debtors

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The demographics of the Group’s customer base, including the default risk has less of
an influence on credit risk.

Most of Group’s revenue is represented in sales transaction with many customers with close
values for each customer, hence, there is no concentration of credit risk on specific customers.

41.24.1.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Credit risk relating to cash and cash equivalents - except cash on hand - and financial deposits
arises from the risk that the counterparty becomes insolvent and accordingly is unable to return
the deposited funds. To mitigate this risk, whenever possible, the Group conducts transactions
and deposits funds with financial institutions with high investment grade.

41.24.2 Liguidity risk

41.24.3

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group ensures that the sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses for a
suitable period, including the service of financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of
extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign currency exchange rates,
interest rates and equity prices will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of
financial instruments.

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

41.24.3.1 Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk on transactions that are denominated in a currency other
than the respective functional currencies of the Group, primarily the U.S. Dollars (USD) and
Euro. In respect of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Group
ensures that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level through purchase or sale of the foreign
currencies with current prices when that is necessary to face un-balanced short term.

41.24.3.2 Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to market risks as a result of changes in interest rates particularly in
relation to borrowings. Borrowings issued at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk.

The basic strategy of interest rate risk management is to balance the debt structure with an
appropriate mix of fixed and floating interest rate borrowings based on the Group’s perception
of future interest rate movements.

41.24.3.3 Other market prices risk

This risk arises from changes in the price of available-for-sale investments held by the Group,
the Group’s management monitors the equity instruments in the investments® portfolio according
to the market and objective valuation of the financial statements related to these shares. Material
investments within the portfolio are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell
decisions are approved by the Board of Directors. The primary goal of the Group’s investment
strategy is to maximize investment returns and the management consults external advisors in this
regard.
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Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 {Continued)

Transiation from Arabic

41.24.4 Capital management
The Board of Directors’ policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor,
creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Boards of
Directors monitors the return on capital, which the Group defines as net operating income divided
by total shareholders’ equity, the Board also monitors the level of dividends paid to shareholders.
There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the year. The Group
is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

42 NEW ISSUES AND AMENDMENTS ISSUED TO THE EGYPTIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS:

On 18 March 2019, the Minister of Investment and International Cooperation amended some of the
Egyptian Accounting Standards issued by the Minister of Investment Decree No. 110 of 2015, which
include some new accounting standards and amendments to some existing standards that has a
significant impact on the financial statements as follows:

classified based on subsequently
measured at their amortized cost, at fair
value through other comprehensive
income or at fair value through profit or
loss, in accordance with the entity's
business model for managing financial
assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset.

3. The realized loss model in the
measurement of impairment of financial
assets is replaced by the expected credit
loss models, which requires the
measurement of impairment of all
financial assets measured at amortized
cost and financial instruments measured
at fair value through other
comprehensive income from the initial
recognition regardless of the existence
of an index of the loss event

4., Pursuant to the requirements of this
standard, the following criteria have
been amended:

- Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (1)
"Presentation of Financijal Statements",
amended 2019

New or Amended Summary of the Most Significant Potential impact Adoption date
Standards Amendments on the Financial
Statements
New Egyptian 1. The new Egyptian Accounting Management is Standard No. 47 is
Accounting Standard No. (47) "Financial currently assessing | effective for financial
Standard No. (47) | Instruments” replaces the corresponding | the potential impact | periods beginning on or
"Financial topics in Egyptian Accounting Standard | on the consolidated | after 1 January 2020 and
instruments” (26) Financial Instruments: Recognition | financial statements | early adoption is
and Measurement. Accordingly, the when applying the | permitted, on the
Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (26) | amendment to the | condition of applying the
Was amended and reissued after the standard. Egyptian Accounting
withdrawal of the paragraphs related to Standards No. (1), (25),
new EAS (47) and define the scope of (26) and (40) amended
the amended Standard (26) to work only 2019 together at the same
with limited cases of hedge accounting Date.
according to the Entity’s choice.
2. In accordance with the requirements On 17/9/2020, Prime
of the Standard, financial assets are Minister Decision No.

1871 of 2020 was issued
to postpone the adoption
of the standard, as the
standard will be applied
to the financial periods
beginning on or after
January 1, 2021.

These amendments shall
be effective from the date
of application of the
standard 47.
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Translation from Arabic

New or Amended
Standards

Summary of the Most Significant
Amendments

Potential impact
on the Financial
Statements

Adoption date

- Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (4)
"Statement of Cash Flows"

- Egyptian Accounting Standard No.
(25) "Financial Instruments:
Presentation”

- Egyptian Accounting Standard No.
(26) "Financial Instruments;
Recognition and Measurement"
Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (40)
"Financial Instruments: Disclosures"”
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New Accounting
Egyptian Standard
No. (48) "Revenue
from contracts
with customers”

1. The new Egyptian Accounting
Standard No. 48, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers, replaces and
cancels the following criteria:

(A) Egyptian Accounting Standard No.
(8) "Construction Contracts", amended
2015;

(B) Egyptian Accounting Standard No.
11, "Revenue", amended 2015;

2. The control model was used to
recognize revenue instead of the benefit
and risk model.

3. The incremental costs of obtaining a
contract with a customer are recognized
as an asset if the entity expects to
recover those costs and the recognition
of the costs of fulfilling the contract as
an asset when specific conditions are
met.

4. The standard requires that the
contract has commercial substance in
order for revenue to be recognized.

5. Expanding disclosure and presentation
requirements.

Management is
currently assessing
the potential impact
on the consolidated
financial statements
when applying the
amendment to the
standard.

Standard No. 48 is
effective for financial
periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2020 and
early adoption is permitted
On 17/9/2020, Prime
Minister Decision No.
1871 of 2020 was issued
to postpone the adoption
of the standard, as the
standard will be applied
to the financial periods
beginning on or after
January 1, 2021.
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New Eg}:ptlan . The new Egyptian Accounting The management of Standard.No. (£}9) Applies
Accounting el " " the group has to financial periods
Standard No. (49) "Leases" replaces the ? "
Standard (49) . . applied the beginning on or after 1
Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (20) .
“Leases” " . accounting January 2020 and early
Accounting Standards and Standards . . . :
. . . . treatment stated in | adoption is permitted if
for Financial Leasing Operations 2015 . . .
and cancels it the Egyptian the Egyptian Accounting
: Accounting standard No. (48)

2. The Standard introduces a single
accounting model for the lessor and the
lessee, the lessee recognizes the right of

Standard No. (49)
Leases.

“Revenue from contracts
with customers” 2019 in

use of the leased asset within the assets | The group's the same time,
of the company and recognizes an management is On 17/9/2020, Prime
obligation that represents the present currently assessing | Minister Decision No.
value of the unpaid lease payments the potential impact | 1871 of 2020 was issued
within the company's obligations, taking | on the consolidated | to postpone the adoption
into account that the lease contracts are | financial statements | of the standard, as the
not classified as operating lease or a when the standard is | standard will be applied
finance lease. applied to the to the financial periods
remaining lease beginning on or after

—

R
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Continued)

Translation from Arabic

New or Amended
Standards

Summary of the Most Significant
Amendments

Potential impact
on the Financial
Statements

Adoption date

3. For the lessor, the lessor shall classify
each contract of its lease contracts either
as an operating lease or as a finance
lease.

4, For the finance lease, the lessor must
recognize the assets held under a
finance lease in the statement of
financial position and present them as a
due amounts equal to the net investment
in the lease contract.

5. For operating lease, the lessor should
recognize the lease payments from
operating leases as income either on a
straight-line basis or on another regular
basis.

contracts in which
the company is a

party.

January 1, 2021, and this
is regarding operating
lease contracts.

Except as of the effective
date above, Standard No.
49 (2019) applies to
leases that were subject to
the Financial Leasing Law
No. 95 of 1995 and its
amendments which were
treated in accordance with
Egyptian Accounting
Standard No. 20,
"Accounting Standards
and Standards Related to
Finance Lease
Operations" The finance
lease contracts which are
arise subject to the Law of
Organizing Finance Lease
and Factoring Activities
No. 176 of 2018, from the
beginning of the annual
report period, in which
law No. 95 of 1995 was
canceled And issuing law
No. 176 of 2018

Amended
Egyptian
Accounting
Standard No. (38)
"Employees
Benefits”

A number of paragraphs were added
and amended to amend the accounting
rules for the modification, reduction and
settlement of the employee benefits
scheme

No effect on the
current
consolidated
financial
statements.

Standard No. (38) is
effective for financial
periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2020 and
early adoption is
permitted

The Financial Regulatory
Authority has postponed
applying the standard on
the quarterly financial
statements during 2020, to
be applied on the annual
financial statements at 31
December 2020, and this
will be effective from
Jamuary 1 , 2020.
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